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The golden age of ancient Egypt was from Dynasty 0, around 3500 to Dynasty 4, around 2500, a prospering period
of around 1000 years B.C. There is no nation on this planet with such a long period of time of prosperity and
flourishing culture. In ancient Egypt they had a top-secret prioritized project, to transform blood groups A, B and AB
to human blood, i.e. blood group 0, in order to become human again and get eternal life. This was in itself nothing
new, it was discussed as early as in Sumer. More info at Obscure Magyar, p 6. At that time Egypt was the most
suitable place where to start the greatest biological research process of all times on blood transformation at a very
high scientific level. More info at Pyramid of Cheops and its Secret, The Crowns of Egypt and its Secrets, and
Dynasty 0 of Ancient Egypt. The blood transformation process was a very secret project, its message was handed
over from pharaoh to pharaoh, from dynasty to dynasty. The secret project was founded by Pharaoh Crocodile in
Dynasty 0 and by Dynasty 4 they should have harvested the results of the thousand-year long research project (I have
proof of this and will save it to my conclusions on this theme). During the decisive times of Dynasty 4, when the
blood transformation process should have been successful, a catastrophe suddenly struck and chaos broke out. I will
now, again, dive deep to have a closer look and analyze what happened in secrecy at that time. – Please note that I use
available material, also private sources and I interpret everything according to my knowledge. This dynasty is also
characterized by obscurity.

      Sneferu

Khufu
  Sun God

Sneferu, son of  Huni.
Built his pyramids in Dahshur
and in Meidum

Khufu, son of Sneferu.
Built his pyramid in Giza,
the largest one

Bent pyramid

Red pyramid

Meidum

Around 2639/2589 - 2504/2454 BC



Kaemsekhem

Mindjedef

Duaenhor

       Kawab
A reincarnation of Djoser

Djedefre Khafra

Menkaure

Bicheris

Setka

Khentekta

Duaenre,

Nebemakhet

Giza

Giza

Abu Rawash

As I have already mentioned, Dynasty 4 was maybe the first dynasty to be covered by thick fog. But that was long
ago, around 5,000 years back in time, in the past. I have carefully studied Dynasty 4 and was made aware of a person
by the name of Menkaure. We actually know nothing about this person, when he was born or who his biological
parents were. There are various notations about his parents, that he was the son of Khufu or Khafra. We can see that
he was born into Dynasty 4 since he looks like the members of the other families. According to a note from ancient
Egypt Kawab was Khufu’s first-born son, a natural heir to the throne after his father’s death. He had three sons and
one of them, Duaenhor, is especially interesting in this context. Neither do we, actually, know much about Kawab’s
children, but this Duaenhor was declared dead as an adult. He was buried in Giza, his mastaba is G 7550, but secretly
he lived on and later returned as Menkaure. This name turns up as, for example, Khafra’s son. All pyramids which
were built in those days were top-modern research laboratories connected to the blood transformation. The gigantic
research process continued for about 1,000 years and there were great expectations that now, during the reign of
Khufu, blood transformation would succeed. In other words: Khufu was supposed to be the first to have a successful
blood transformation. Kawab was a reincarnation of, among others, Enki, Pharaoh Scorpion II and Djoser. The blood
transformation process was actually Enki’s final goal as early as Sumer. Khufu was a reincarnation of, among others,
Marduk, Khonsu and Pharaoh Menes. At that time, the trio Sneferu, Khufu and Kawab had the best knowledge of the
blood transformation process. Sneferu’s red pyramid was the most modern biological research laboratory. Khufu built
an even larger and more modern laboratory than that of is father’s, but at the same time plans were made for a new
and even more up-to-date pyramid on a hill in Abu Rawash, dedicated to his son Kawab. Each pyramid was personal,
dedicated to the current pharaoh.
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Djedefre was also involved in these plans, he was an architect, and later on also his
son Setka. The choice of a hill in Abu Rawash was made because of security
reasons. The neutron star AN had already entered the solar system and the threat of
floods was the most important reason for building 8 kilometres outside Abu
Rawash and at the same distance north of Giza. Cairo, Giza and Abu Rawash
together form an almost equilateral triangle. More info at The Crowns of Egypt
and their secrets, page 5. It seems to be the case that Cairo at that time was an
important centre, the construction of the Abu Rawash pyramid is an indication.

Neutron star AN in
Dynasty 4



 

The nature has its own rules and laws. There is a code to the blood transformation process. If you know that code, you
can start the actual process. Dynasty 4 had 1,000 years of research experience, it is possible they possessed the code.
The whole family, selected scientists, doctors and architects were some who were familiar with the secret theory.
Kawab, despite his youth, was a driving force as well as his father Khufu. He planned to test new solutions
concerning the blood process in the new pyramid in Abu Rawash in case his father would not succeed. Everybody
was thus prepared to carry out a successful blood transformation process on Khufu. The plans were also known by an
undesired person who did not want Khufu to succeed. That person was a child by then, but his secret group knew
exactly what it was about. Kawab was murdered and whole family weakened. It was an unexpected event, nobody
had had any idea that someone in the family would be killed. Khufu’s blood transformation was not successful. More
info at Dynasty 0 in Ancient Egypt, pp 25-35. The possibility of sabotage in Khufu’s laboratory and control room in
his pyramid cannot be excluded. Dynasty 4 and Khufu’s family suffered a terrible defeat and suddenly everthing
turned into a black future. His son Djedefre ascended the throne, became pharaoh and started to build the next
pyramid in Abu Rawash, a pyramid based on his biological body structure and blood group. The construction was
arranged in a way I have already described in Pyramid of Cheops and its Secrets. The technology and the secret
theory behind building a pyramid for blood research were at the beginning passed from family to family and from
dynasty to dynasty. We do not know how long he lived, for how long he ruled the kingdom. According to some
records he ruled for about 8 years, some records state around 20 years. We do not know much about him, but we
know for a fact that he started to build the pyramid as soon as he became a pharaoh. Egyptologists, archaeologists and
historians maintain that the pyramid was completed and in its vicinity also other buildings for people who were part
of the construction project. The technology equipment was finished, Djedefre was also prepared for the blood
transformation process. I now call the gang who killed Kawab the “M gang”. This M gang wanted to kill Kawab’s
brother Djedefre, too. The gang consisted of some man, professional killers. They were well known to the court and
the whole family but nobody knew about their top-secret murder activities directed at certain persons in the family. It
was a life-or-death issue. This M gang did not want Djedefre to succeed and finally, to be on the safe side, killed him
before the blood transformation process had started.  Panic broke out in the family and horror ruled. The court, also
the the royal palace in Giza, did not tell anyone about this, they did not want people outside the royal court to lose
their balance. Djedefre was declared dead and was buried. His sarcophagus should have been in the Abu Rawash
pyramid, but according to list of all mastabas in Giza, he is in Giza, in mastaba G7110+7120. This may also indicate
that something terrible happened in the Abu Rawash pyramid, something that was immediately covered up.

     Abu Rawash

Maybe the most modern
laboratory and research
centre for the blood trans-
formation process of all
times.  But it was not a rest
home for Pharaoh Djedefre.



This pyramid was perhaps the last modern research institute and laboratory dedicated to a blood transformation process in
order to become a human again and have eternal life.
After the murder of Djedefre there was chaos at the royal palace and a new pharaoh was to be selected. According to
rules and tradition, one of the pharaoh’s sons was the successor to the throne, in this case Bicheris or Setka. But
Khafra , Khufu’s third son, ascended the throne. Why? What happened? In those days terror and death ravaged the
royal palace and probably neither of Djedefre’s sons dared accept pharaoh’s responsibilities. Finally Khufu’s son
Khafra had to shoulder the burden.

Khafra’s pyramid in Giza. The last
research centre dedicated to the
blood transformation process.

The Sphinx on a lion’s body on their
father’s, Khufu’s, memorial. Djedefre star-
ted to build and Khafra finished it. More
info at Pyramid of Cheops and its secrets,
page 24.

Was he also killed there?

Because of terror and uncertainty in Abu Rawash, he built his pyramid in Giza. We do not know for certain how
long he ruled. The deeper we dive into Dynasty 4, the thicker the fog covering the whole dynasty’s history. It is a
fact that he finished his pyramid, since we can see it today. Was there time enough to equip the inside? How far did
he get with his personal research on blood transformation? When and how did he die? Facts mainly point to the fact
that he was killed by the M gang.

Some records state that Djedefre’s son Bicheris was elected pharaoh after the death of Khafra. One question is about
the rules which were applied in those days. We usually say that there are no rules governing chaos and terror. After
Khafra’s death one of his sons was supposed to ascend the throne. What happened? Were they all already dead? In
that case, who killed them? Anyway, Bicheris started to build his pyramid in Zawyet el'Aryan, 10 kilometers south
of Cairo instead of in Giza. We know even less about Bicheris than about his father Djedefre.

Zawyet el'Aryan

    Zawyet el'Aryan

Bicheris’ pyramid . Only the
foundation still stand, but it
was supposed to become a
genuine pyramid. With a
base of 210 meters the
pyramid would have
become one of the very
largest, height 133 or 210
meters.



Interior design of the foundation of Bicheris’ pyramid. There were also secret
entrances which are gone, as in Djedefre’s pyramid.

Inside Bicheris’ pyramid. The sarcophagus in pink granite is visible, but empty. The actual base of the pyramid is a ruin today.
This is where he was supposed to build the very last laboratory dedicated to blood transformation. The interior of this pyramid
is similar to that of Djedefre’s. It seems to be the case that his brother, the architect Setka, also assisted with the construction of
Bicheris’ pyramid. We do not know how far he got, if he built only half of it or if he finished the whole pyramid.

According to records he ruled for a short period of time. He simply disappeared. Did the M gang kill him, too?
There were no problems for the next pharaoh to ascend the throne and rule over Egypt and, above all, in Giza. All
important people were dead. The name is well known: Menkaure, the Serpent God. At that time, everybody in the
royal palace joined Menkaure’s ideology, a new type of religion, Trinity. It was possible for Menkaure to handle
The Secret Theory, the Blood Transformation, and the connected pyramid construction. The years passed and the
neutron star had long since entered our solar system and started to approach the Earth. Soon, the star would appear
in the sky and the natural catastrophes would become even worse. Menkaure decided that he would also build a
pyramid in Giza, next to Khafra’s and Khufu’s pyramids, a demonstration that he also belonged to the nucleus of
Dynasty 4.

Bicheris’ name in cartouche

Djedefre’s pyramid:
Base: 106 meters
Height: 67 meters
Angle of inclination: 52 degrees
Abu Rawash

Menkaure’s pyramid:
Base: 103 meters
Height: 65 meters
Angle of inclination: 51 degrees
Giza

D-pyramid = M-pyramid



We can see that Menkaure’s pyramid is as large as that of Djedefre’s, almost a copy, and he used Djedefre’s building
as a model. The large pink granite blocks can be seen at the bottom of Menkaure’s pyramid. We know from the pink
granite pieces in Abu Rawash that Djedefre used granite, too. He was the first to use it, his pyramid was the
prototype.  He got his idea from Khufu and took it further. The tomb of the Cheops pyramid is covered by granite.
Djedefre borrowed the idea and put granite on the outside of his pyramid.
Granite gives a different impression and is also sustainable. Menkaure copies Djedefre. It would be expensive to
cover the whole pyramid, which is why he only used on the lower third. Bicheris also used granite in his pyramid.

Abu Rawash: the ruins of the pyramid foundation. The
pictures confirm the existence of a large project.



Menkaure started to build his pyramid after having ascended the throne and became the most powerful leader of the
Egyptian kingdom. All his enemies and opponents were dead and those who offered resistance against him and his
ideology were instantly killed. He could do almost anything. Djedefre’s pyramid in Abu Rawash was still in place,
untouched. Menkaure ordered that all equipment and furnishing of the pyramid in Abu Rawash should be ravaged and
destroyed as well as all other buildings outside the pyramid. The area was uninhabited, as was the pyramid in Zawyet
el'Aryan. As far as I can understand from historical records, a considerable earthquake took place in the Abu Rawash
area and the pyramid was damaged. The pyramid’s foundation consists of granite blocks and only a powerful quake
can move the granite. The earthquake was also felt in the Giza area, we do not know anything about damages there.
But the Giza, Abu Rawash and Zawyet el'Aryan pyramids remained fairly undamaged.

Menkaure possessed superior knowledge, he probably had the Secret Theory in his hand, he knew how to build a
genuine pyramid. Under the circumstances Menkaure decided to destroy the pyramids of Abu Rawash and Zawyet
el'Aryan, to move the equipment to Giza, put it back together, and to rebuild Djedefre’s pyramid after complete
instructions from Giza, next to Khafra’s pyramid.

It was not an easy task to demolish a large and stable pyramid which consisted of hundreds of thousands weighing
several tons and move them to Giza. He used the same methods for transport and construction as did his predecessors.
He also used so-called levitation technology for transports. More info at Pyramid of Cheops and its Secret, pp 5-7.

The ruin in Abu Rawash. We can clearly see thousands of stone blocks weighing two tons. At least 325,00 tiles of limestone and thousands
of granite, with a quadrangle of 2.5 meters, were used, weighing several tons.



Storage in Giza.

An object in storage in Giza might give a clue to levitation technology. It is an object made of wood, shaped as a
staff similar to a mallet. As we can see from the pictures, it is damaged. It was a tool used by the pharaohs in
transports and construction during, for example, the Old Kingdom.
Using levitation technology made is possible for him to demolish, transport and rebuild Djedefre’s pyramid in Giza
in a short period of time, using fewer people.  The secret M gang worked for Menkaure, the Serpent God. The
group consisted of a few priests and some individuals who were born into different families, were declared dead,
but continued to have a secret life as doubles. All doors were open for them and because of that the patrol of death
could kill important people and sabotage their blood transformation process. I do not know if Menkaure
constructed a laboratory dedicated to the blood transformation process in his pyramid. At that time a blood
transformation process was personal and it was carried out towards the end of a pharaoh’s life since life was not
possible with new blood in the old body.   The Serpent God Menkaure was afraid of death and it is unlikely that he
even tried to take the test. There were terrible catastrophes also in Egypt because the neutron star AN, as a comet,
ravaged the solar system, the most common disasters were, among others, earthquakes and floods. There is a clue
among these catastrophes which confirms that several rulers replaced each other after relatively short reigns, e.g. in
Dynasty 4, 5 and 6. More info at Obscure Magyar, page 13. We do not know much about Menkaure and his reign,
there are different records. Anyway, he tried to cover up all outrages that were carried out during Dynasty 4.

My personal view is this: Menkaure did a so-called ascension from the very mountain in Abu Rawash where the rest of the pyramid remained,
alone. A spaceship stood waiting for him. He embarked and then the spaceship (a smaller version) took off and disappeared. He was declared
dead almost instantaneously and in his tomb there is probably another person with his name. More info at Mayas, Incas, Aztecs and Their
Secrets, page 12. He left life on Earth in chaos, terror and natural catastrophes, but he had a new idea about a new Sun religion.

From a long to a short
orbit  around the Sun.



Menkaure was a reincarnation of, among others, Tiamat/Inanna, Khufu was a reincarnation of, among others,
Marduk, and Kawab was a reincarnation of, among others, Enki. Menkaure managed to stop the blood transformation
process and Dynasty 4. If you can restore the original blood group 0, you become a NEW HUMAN BEING , a new
Adam.  You forget your animal past and everything starts from the beginning. We know practically nothing about
Menkaure’s family. There are different records, e.g. only one known child, Prince Khuenre, who died at an early age
and was buried in a minor pyramid at his father’s side. It is unclear whether he was related to his successor
Shepseskaf. Herodotus wrote about him that accidents happened: his only daughter died before him and was buried in
a bull made of wood. If this is true, the bull would be a symbol of the bull deity Apis in this context.

After Menkaure, Shepseskaf followed in his precursor’s footsteps, ascended the throne and became pharaoh. We do
not know anything about either, a thick fog covers also his reign and activities. He put a stop to Dynasty 4 and the
construction of pyramids. He built a coffin-like mastaba in Saqqara instead, a symbolic coffin illustrating the fact that
all activities in Dynasty 4 concerning the blood transformation process had ended up in a coffin. He was probably a
member of the M gang, thus a double. Shepseskaf knew about everything that was going on in the royal palace, his
mastaba unmasks him. If there is any truth in what Herodotus wrote about Menkaure, that he buried his only daughter
in a bull  made of wood, it would mean that the next pharaoh was to be a bull on the throne following his will
regarding Dynasty 4, a reincarnation of the bull Tammuz from Sumer and the bull Apis. More info at Obscure
Magyar, pages 2 and 13. A typical serpent-god finish. There was chaos, terror and uncertainty also during
Shepseskaf’s reign.

     Shepseskaf
Finished Dynasty 4

     Shepseskaf
Finished Dynasty 4

Shepseskaf’s mastaba in Saqqara. This mastaba reminds me of a coffin.
Menkaure’s will

A model of  Shepseskaf’s mastaba – the coffin in Saqqara A thousand-year-old top-level biological research project
is symbolically buried in this mastaba. From Dynasty 0 to
4 there was law and order, now buried in the mastaba.



Userkafs

After the death of Shepseskaf chaos, turbulence and disagreement broke out in the royal palace. According to some
records, Thamphthis ascended the throne, for some reason for a short period of time only, maybe he was murdered.
We do not really know who he was, we do not know anything about his biological parents and how he became a
pharaoh. There is no knowledge about that. His origins are also obscure.

After Thamphthis, Userkaf ascended the throne and became pharaoh of Egypt, the pharaoh who founded Dynasty
5. There are few references about him and his reign. He is known for his construction of the Saqqara pyramid
complex and a sun temple. His origins and family are unknown. According to Manethon, Userkaf came from
Elephantine in the south, we do not know if this is based on facts. His relationship to the royal family during
Dynasty 4 is also obscure. In other words: Suddenly another totally unknown character appears and becomes a
pharaoh. There are only certain facts preserved about him, these facts are clues which may lead to his origins.

Userkaf and his new royal crown, Dynasty 5, around 2504/2454 – 2347/2297 B.C.

This is Userkaf’s statue which illustrates and certifies that the pharaoh of Dynasty 5 introduced a new type of crown.
This crown can support Manetho’s notation that Userkaf came from Elephantine in the south and had nothing to do
with Dynasty 4. He must also have been a very, very rich man. He came to the royal palace via payments, bribes and
murder. Because of his wealth he became the most powerful man in the kingdom. He again started to build a
pyramid and a sun temple. His soul was powerful, a powerful bull’s soul, an Osiris soul, the soul of the God of
Death.

Userkaf’s pyramid:
Base: 73.3 meters
Height: 49 meters
Angle of inclination: 53 degrees
Saqqara

Userkaf’s pyramid:
Base: 73.3 meters
Height: 49 meters
Angle of inclination: 53 degrees
Saqqara

Userkaf’s predecessor Shepseskaf abolished the construction of pyramids, but the new pharaoh did exactly the
opposite. He built the smallest pyramid in Saqqara, where Pharaoh Djoser during Dynasty 3 built the first really
large pyramid. We can ask where the Secret Theory and its instructions about pyramid constructions had gone. The
pictures above confirm that Userkaf finished the construction. It seems to be the case that Userkaf did not obey
Menkaure’s instructions in his will. He even built a sun temple for himself. We know that the lion Khufu was called
The Sun, because the lion is symbol of the Sun. His son Djedefre called himself the Son of the Sun or The Son of the
Sun God.  A pharaoh was also called God.

We can follow Userkaf’s activities during his reign. We can also analyze preserved material from his time to gain
more information about him.



Above is a reconstruction of Userkaf’s pyramid. We see from the model that it was built after instructions from his
predecessors. We can also see that the pyramid was a finished, complete building also for the blood transformation
process. There is a very interesting text, written about the death deity Osiris: ”From Dynasty 5 the dead king was
identified with Osiris.” More info at Obscure Magyar, page 13. When a blood transformation was carried out
towards the king’s or pharaoh’s death, the king finally died. When the soul left the body, it was possible to see if the
process was successful. If a human-like soul had left the body, they knew that the process had succeeded. With
Userkaf, the process was not successful. His soul was seen to leave his body as a bull. Someone unknown, tuned
into his body’s level of frequency, could see the direction of the soul as it left the body. There were also signs of the
soul on his forehead, signs of Osiris, who, on his part, looked like Apis, the sign of the Bull. In that way, the dead
king could be identified as Osiris. Osiris was called the God of Death and Resurrection. Resurrection means rebirth
or reincarnation. More info also at Hanging Gardens of Babylon, page 11. Each pharaoh was buried in his own
pyramid after having been declared dead.

Model of Userkaf’s pyramid in Saqqara. The
construction of a pyramid is very expensive. You
do no build a pyramid with the sole purpose of
putting a dead pharaoh in it. There were other
reasons behind a pyramid like that, even if the
public were not told. Today we write 2013, but
even today there is much we are not told about.
Besides the pyramid, Userkaf built a sun temple,
based on an obelisk. What does this mean? What
does the obelisk reveal?
More info at The Crowns of Egypt and Their
Secrets, page 16.



Userkaf’s sun temple in Abusir
Obelisk in the sun temple of Abusir

Above: a reconstruction of Userkaf’s sun temple. The obelisk forms the foundation of the whole sun temple, and is
the main feature of the construction. The obelisk is a male symbol, the male human being who had direct connections
to the blood transformation process. All that is secret is hidden in the obelisk, other details are unimportant. This is
strong evidence that Userkaf managed the Secret Theory, since the obelisk was a symbol of the whole blood
transformation process. It seems to be the case that it was Userkaf who built the first obelisk.

Obelisk

Userkaf’s sun temple
Userkaf founded Dynasty 5
around 2465 -2458 B.C.
This is his sun temple

Nyuserre’s sun temple
Nyuserre was the sixth
pharaoh of Dynasty 5,
around 2420 -2389 B.C.
This is his sun temple.

Obelisk

Obelisk

The construction plans of these two sun temples are similar. A sun temple was dedicated to the Sun’s existence as
a giver of life. The Lion Khufu called himself The Sun. Menkaure had a new idea about the Sun and Userkaf built
a temple to underline that he was a symbol of the Sun.  This sun temple was mainly directed at Khufu and meant
that Userkaf was the true King of the Sun, not Khufu. The temple’s obelisk is evidence that Userkaf wanted to
conquer our galaxy. Everything these pharaohs built was connected to astronomy and astrology in a symbolic way.
Everything was well thought-out.



A reconstruction of Userkaf’s sun temple

A reconstruction of Nyuserre’s sun temple

So-called levitation technology was used by all pharaohs for construction and transports. There were still natural
catastrophes such as floods and earthquakes.
As early as in those days, important personalities could be divided into groups: Khufu’s group with Khufu and his
three sons; Khufu/Marduk, Kawab/Enki; Menkaure’s group, Menkaure and Shepseskaf; Menkaure/Tiamat/Inanna
and Shepseskaf/Tammuz/Jacob’s 11th son Joseph. The main character of the third group was the Bull
Userkaf/Gilgamesh. These groups were competitors, it was about life or death. None of them managed to become
human again. The Chaos Monster appeared again and caused chaos.

.

It was probably Pharaoh Userkaf who ordered his priests to cover up the whole existence of Dynasty 4. He tried to stabilize the
situation despite the constant occurrence of natural catastrophes.

Menkaure and Chaos

Userkaf in chaos



According to the Bible, Jacob’s 11th son Joseph came to Egypt around 2000 years B.C. It was during the Neolithic
Era, 6000-3500 B.C in ancient Egypt.
The fights between the groups continued and we find them again during Dynasty 18, 19 and 20.

Dynasty 18, around 1550-1292 B.C. In the New Kingdom, during Dynasty 18, strange events took place between
the Tutankhamun and Akhenaten groups. Tutankhamun’s group included, among others, Tutankhamun/Khufu,
Smenkhare/Djedefre and Horemheb/Khafra. In Akhenaten’s group we find Akhenaten and his family and relatives.
More info at Foundation Stone, pp 1-24. Pharaoh, the Serpent God Akhenaten founded a new type of Sun worship, a
Sun religion called Aten. Aten was the neutron star AN, which had returned from a short orbit around the Sun.
Akhenaten renamed the star Aten, which became a new Sun religion in ancient Egypt. Akhenaten himself was the
symbol of the Sun or Sun deity Aten. The new worship of the Sun was short-lived and the Serpent God Akhenaten
made plans for a new religion which he planned to realize at all costs. The neutron star AN, which had left the solar
system during the Old Kingdom had already returned with the new name, Aten. Akhenaten was ready, he did a so-
called ascension in a spaceship, left the Earth and was at the same time declared dead. According to records, Ahmose
I built the last pyramid during Dynasty 18, 1550-1525 B.C.

The Bull God Osiris The God of Death and the Death
Kingdom, Osiris

Ramesses I, the founder of
Dynasty 19

Seti I, son of Ramesses I
Ramesses II, son of Seti I,
      Bull God Osiris

Dynasty 18’s last pharaoh was Horemheb, who, according to records, had no heir. He had an army acquaintance
called Paramesse who accepted the offer of becoming pharaoh. He took the name Ramesses I and ascended the
throne. He founded Dynasty 19 which was to become the Dynasty of the Bull, Osiris’ dynasty. He has often been
regarded as the pharaoh who turns up in the Torah/Old Testament, the pharaoh who held Moses and his people in
captivity and then reluctantly let them out of slavery. It is however unclear, there is no record of the pharaoh’s name,
but Ramesses II is a good fit during Moses’ exodus from Egypt. This would mean that Moses was born during the
reign of Pharaoh Seti I, i.e. Moses knew Ramesses II personally.

Dynasty 19, 1292-1185 B.C.



bush

The Bull, Pharaoh Ramesses II, the God of Death and the Kingdom of Death, Osiris, the second worst enemy of Akhenaten, the
most powerful characters of the Kingdom of Egypt.

The Bull and the sun disc
are symbols of the Sun
and the Sun God. See
Userkaf’s sun temple.

The Bull and the sun disc
are symbols of the Sun
and the Sun God. See
Userkaf’s sun temple.

When a flying saucer, or
its surface, is hit by rays
from the sun, it may
from a distance look as
if the object is burning.
At that time, a flying
object in the desert was
compared to a burning
bush.
A burning bush in the
form of a tree, according
to the painting. Akhena-
ten’s space ship.

The Serpent God calls Moses – according to the
Bible.
At that time, Moses was tending the flock of
Jethro, his father-in-law, the priest of Midian.
And he led the flock to the back of the desert and
came to Horeb, the mountain of God. The angel
of the Lord appeared to him in a flame of fire
from a bush. Moses saw that the bush was
burning, but it was not consumed.
Then he thought: ”I will now turn aside and see
this great sight, why the bush does not burn”.
When he came closer, God called him from the
bush and said: ”Moses, Moses”. Moses answered:
“Here I am”.

At that time, Moses was tending the
flock of Jethro,…..

Then God said: ” “Do not draw near this place. Take your sandals off your feet, for the place where you stand is holy ground.”
6 Moreover He said, “I am the God of your father—the God of Abraham, the God of Isaac, and the God of Jacob.” And
Moses hid his face, for he was afraid to look upon God. – What did God say? Whose God was He? – According to the Bible
Aaron was around 83 years old and his younger brother Moses around 80. The brothers were of Levi Tribe. We know from the
Bible that Jacob’s 11th son, Joseph, finally came to Egypt and that he served at the pharaoh’s court during the neolithic era. His
family multiplied in Egypt for more than a thousand years. God mentioned the names of Abraham, Isaac and Jacob. The Serpent
was a reincarnation in Isaac’s family, he killed Jacob, took over his family and called himself Israel. More info at Omnipotent
Akhenaten, pp 4-6. Abraham was a reincarnation of, among others, Enki and Enki’s latest reincarnation was called
Kawab, Khufu’s first-born son in Dynasty 4. A short presentation of Abraham. The Serpent Israel said that he was
Abraham’s and Jacob’s God.



Moses and his Serpent Rod. ”/…/ Moses answered: “What if they do not believe me or listen to me and say, ‘The LORD did not
appear to you’?” Then the LORD said to him, “What is that in your hand?” “A staff,” he replied. The LORD said, “Throw it on the
ground.” Moses threw it on the ground and it became a snake, and he ran from it. Then the LORD said to him, “Reach out your
hand and take it by the tail.” So Moses reached out and took hold of the snake and it turned back into a staff in his hand. “This,”
said the LORD, “is so that they may believe that the LORD, the God of their fathers—the God of Abraham, the God of Isaac and
the God of Jacob—has appeared to you.” – The Lord introduced Himself as a “Serpent God” to Abraham, Isaac and Jacob and to
all people of Israel. The Serpent God who spoke to Moses was Akhenaten, from his small spaceship.

The Levites Moses and Aaron before the pharaoh, who sees the sign of the Serpent God in front of himself. The Serpent God, Pharaoh
Akhenaten appeared in court before the pharaoh. The wrath of Aten is waiting for the pharaoh and Egypt. Secretly, Akhenaten called
himself Aten. The neutron sun Aten ravaged the solar system and caused multiple different disasters. Akhenaten also wanted to punish
Egypt because the kingdom rejected his new Aten religion. Moses and Aaron had to put forward a new message concerning the exodus
from Egypt by the Israeli people. – New religion, (an extension of Aten), new people and new kingdom, Israel.  Note that there only
Levites here, no Jews.

Book of Exodus, 4
Book of Exodus, 4

Exodus 7



THE GOLDEN CALF/BULL. Moses and his people, the Israelis, walked around Mount Sinai for more than forty years because of
constant natural catastrophes such as floods and earthquakes caused by the neutron star Aten on its way through the solar system after
a short orbit (around 800-1,000 years) around the Sun. The Bible: “When the people saw that Moses was so long in coming down from
the mountain, they gathered around Aaron and said, “Come, make us gods who will go before us. As for this fellow Moses who
brought us up out of Egypt, we don’t know what has happened to him.”  Aaron answered them, “Take off the gold earrings that your
wives, your sons and your daughters are wearing, and bring them to me.” So all the people took off their earrings and brought them to
Aaron. He took what they handed him and made it into an idol cast in the shape of a calf. Then they said, “These are your gods, Israel,
who brought you up out of Egypt.” When Aaron saw this, he built an altar in front of the calf and announced, “Tomorrow there will be
a festival to the LORD.” So the next day the people rose early and sacrificed burnt offerings and presented fellowship offerings.
Afterward they sat down to eat and drink and got up to indulge in revelry.” The people knew that the origins of Jacob’s 11th son was a
Bull, known in Egypt as Apis the Bull (Tammuz).  The majority of these people were Joseph’s descendants. One of them was Joshua,
son of Nun.
But Joseph and his family were still in Egypt, among the rich, via reincarnations. Israel’s God, The Serpent God, had landed on the top
of the mountain and had conversations with Moses. And the LORD said to Moses, “Go, get down! For your people whom you brought
out of the land of Egypt have corrupted themselves. They have turned aside quickly out of the way which I commanded them. They
have made themselves a molded calf, and worshiped it and sacrificed to it, and said, ‘This is your god, O Israel, that brought you out of
the land of Egypt!”
Israel’s God, the Serpent God, knew that the golden Bull symbolized an even worse Bull called Osiris, the God of Death and the
Kingdom of Death, the false Sun God, who was then on the throne as the pharaoh of Egypt. He felt utter anger at the top of the
mountain. More info at Omnipotent Akhenaten, pp 10-11.

The Levite
Aaron

The Levite
Aaron

Aaron’s
creation

The Golden Bull, the Sun God, the Serpent’s second worst enemy and the revelry at the foot of the mountain. And Moses turned and went down
from the mountain, and the two tablets of the Testimony were in his hand. The tablets were written on both sides; on the one side and on the
other they were written. And when Joshua heard the noise of the people as they shouted, he said to Moses, “There is a noise of war in the camp.”
So it was, as soon as he came near the camp, that he saw the calf and the dancing. So Moses’ anger became hot, and he cast the tablets out of his
hands and broke them at the foot of the mountain. Then he took the calf which they had made, burned it in the fire, and ground it to powder; and
he scattered it on the water and made the children of Israel drink it. And Moses said to Aaron, “What did this people do to you that you have
brought so great a sin upon them?”
These short quotations from the Bible reveal that between the two supreme Gods of Egypt, between the Serpent and the Bull, there was a
constant battle for power over Life and Death and the Israeli people were terrified of the Serpent.  They were more at ease in Egypt with the Bull
deity Ramesses II. It was the Serpent who approached the people, not vice versa.

Exodus 32

Exodus 32



The Bible furthermore reveals that Moses worked for the Serpent God, while his brother Aaron was more sympathetic towards the
Bull God. But who was Moses, and who was Aaron? If we look back to Akhenaten’s reign we find two important individuals close to
him. One was Anen, his uncle Aten’s sem-priest who corresponded to Aaron, the other one was his uncle Ay, corresponding to Moses,
both of course are reincarnations. Thus, the God of Israel, the Serpent God, had left Egypt. More info at Omnipotent Akhenaten.
The Bible also reveals that God is an animal and each god had personal animal origins.
Who was pharaoh? In those days multiple kinds of natural catastrophe struck, including a punishment inflicted from his spaceship by
the Serpent God, Israel’s God: Moses’ exodus from Egypt. It all took at least forty chaotic years and the Bible mentions only one
pharaoh. According to the record, Ramesses II ruled Egypt for more than sixty years. This pharaoh, according to many historians,
could have been the pharaoh who ruled at the very beginning of Israel’s history during Dynasty 19, without Jews.

 Pharaoh Seti I,  Dynasty 19            Pharaoh Ramesses II,

Amun,              Ramesses II                   Mut
                         Dynasty 19

There are, furthermore, two important events during the reign of Pharaoh Ramesses II. One is that also he, together
with his father Set I, built an obelisk dedicated to the memory of Amun. He also removed the Lion Tutankhamun
from between Amun and Mut, see picture above. The Bull’s goal was to destroy the Serpent, remove the Lion and
maintain that Mut was his mother, thus he belonged to Amun. Ramesses II’s favorite family picture reveals that he wanted
to be Amun’s son. Most obelisks built during Dynasty 18 were Amun memorials. The Bull God Ramesses II was a reincarnation
of Osiris/Userkaf who in turn was a reincarnation of Gilgamesh. At that time another Bull was created, Enkidu, to support
Gilgamesh. This bull reappeared later on in history to support the Bull Osiris, either as his companion, alliance or as his son,
Merneptah, son of Ramesses II. He was the thirteenth son of Ramesses II came to power in his sixties after his elder brothers
had died. Ramesses II was more than 90 years when he died, 24 when he ascended the throne. The Bull God and his
group also left Egypt and then came to the Middle East.

Merneptah, son of Ramesses II Amenmesse  Seti II, Seti-Merneptah
    Son of Merneptah

Siptah, son of Seti II

After the death of Merneptah, Amenmesse became the pharaoh of Egypt. He was not Merneptah’s son, according to records. But
who was he and how did he become a pharaoh?  Merneptah, as well as Seti II and Siptah, had a triangular face and they looked
like each other. Amenmesse had a similar face which may mean that he was related to Merneptah. That is why he came to power
for unknown reasons, a so-called fight of power within the family.

Queen Twosret was Pharaoh Merneptah’s daughter. By marrying her half-brother Set II she became,
after the death of her father, Queen of Egypt and Seti II’s major royal consort. After the death of her
husband she reigned as a queen regent together with the Syrian chancellor Bay during the six-year-
long reign of her underage stepson Siptah. When Siptah died, leaving no successor to the throne
behind, Queen Twosret ruled alone during two years. She was then removed by Setnakhte, the
founder of Dynasty 20. I believe she was a reincarnation of Queen Hathor, Dynasty 18. In this way
Dynasty 19, around 100 years of ancient Egyptian history, ended.



Dynasty 20, 1185–1070 B.C.

Setnakhte
Founder of Dynasty 20

Setnakhte
Founder of Dynasty 20

Dynasty 20 Emblem
Astrol. sign Great Bear

The Big Dipper

There were two powerful bulls fighting each other in the history of ancient Egypt. One was Osiris, the other one Apis.
The families of the two bulls intermarried and were reincarnated into both families, therefore difficult to keep apart. We
find examples of this in Dynasty 19 and 20. Dynasty 18 and 19 are difficult to see through, the same goes for Dynasty
20. We actually do not know anything about Pharaoh Setnakhte who founded Dynasty 20. There are clues indicating
that Setnakhte originally came from Pharaoh Amenmesse’s family. There may be an understanding that this pharaoh,
who ascended the throne and founded the last real ancient Egyptian dynasty, was insignificant. That is a
misunderstanding of the king, the first pharaoh of Dynasty 20 and the whole short-lived dynasty. In the Valley of the
Kings, in Setnakhte’s tomb, KV14, we find the answer, one of the most important murals in the history of ancient
Egypt. I believe that King Setnakhte was Jacob 11’s son, the offspring of the Bull Joseph, member of the Bull Apis’
family.

Osiris and his triad
Trinity

Ramesses II

Menkaure and his triad
Trinity

Akhenaten/Israel’s God

What does this mural depict? What does it reveal? The king himself is at the centre of events. Above and around the king’s head is
the zodiac sign the Great Bear, the Big Dipper (this symbol is also in the coat of arms of the royal family Bernadotte). In front of
and behind the king we see the dark sun Aten, i.e. the neutron star. Below Aten and in front of the king we see three vertical stars
and his penis is pointing to these stars which symbolize Menkaure’s triad meaning biological support for Menkaure. Below the
king’s penis is a character, neither man nor woman, a hybrid pointing with its right hand towards the stars, like the king’s penis. –
Behind the king is the same Aten sun and below that, almost horizontally to the king’s backside, we see three stars, but no
character. These three stars form the symbol of Osiris’ triad, trinity. In front of and behind is a man who is lifting his wife (two
different families) all the way to the stars in ”V”, Victoria’s sign.  What does this message mean? It represents the blood
transformation process which failed for the Serpent Menkaure (he probably did not even do the tests) in Dynasty 4, and also failed
for the Bull Userkaf in Dynasty 5. In other words: nobody has succeeded in transforming animal blood to human blood. Eternal
life is gone. What remains is only the Kingdom of Death which is about pharaoh’s history, to prolong life in the Kingdom of
Death. In this context the Kingdom of Death is the sun Aten, the dark neutron star in our solar system. More info at Life and the
Black Hole. We are left with the battle of the Kingdom of Death in our solar system, a battle still going on between the Serpent
and the Bull. The mural tells us that the king gives biological support to the Serpent by giving him a human-like body. This would
fit in the Kingdom of Death or pass through its gate (Rev 1:17-18).



Ramesses III

Setnakhte

Queen Iset Queen Tiye

Prince Pentawer
(Ephraim)

Prince Ramesses
Heir to the throne

(Manasseh)

Israel’s
God

Joseph

Pharaoh Setnakhte’s son was Ramesses III, the last Ramesses, the Great. His predecessor Ramesses II also had
‘Great’ added to his name. He ruled for about 32 years. Ramesses III had two major consorts, one was Queen Iset, the
other one was Queen Tiye. He opposed an important tradition, the pharaohs normally had only one consort. They had
sons of the same age, which created rivalry. The result was a conspiracy at the end of Ramesses’ reign. It was murder
ordered by Queen Tiye who wanted her son, Prince Pentawer, to ascend the throne. Somebody cut Pharaoh Ramesses
III’s throat, the king was murdered. Prince Pentawer was also involved in the conspiracy against his father. This story
reminds me of Israel’s blessing of Jacob’s 11th son Joseph and his two sons, Manasseh and Ephraim, by a so-called
crosswise blessing. This means their roads were to meet later in the future. Ramesses III’s reign was such a future.
More info at Omnipotent Akhenaten, pp 4-6.

Setnakhte Ramesses III

Crosswise
blessing



Ramesses IV Prince Pentawer
(Reconstruction)

After the murder of Ramesses III it was time for Prince
Pentawer to ascend the throne. But just as it was to
happen, something went wrong. After a mistake, the
conspiracy was revealed, someone seems to have been
tipped off. It could have been Ramesses IV. Prince
Pentawer was charged in privacy behind locked doors.
The judges did not want to pass sentence on a royal
person for fear of the gods. In the court’s records we
can read that Pentawer was allowed to commit suicide.
In this way the roads of Ramesses III’s sons met. This
is called crosswise blessing, according to Israel. They
grew up being competitors. The clergy were also
involved in the conspiracy. (The court’s records can be
found at Museo Egizio, Italy)

Prince Pentawer
(Mummy)

Prince Pentawer
(Mummy)

As early as in 1886 Gaston Maspero examined the mummy of a so-called Unknown man E. There were indications
that the mummy was Prince Pentawer, according to a famous Egyptologist. It is a royal mummy dressed in goatskin.
The goatskin, symbolically dirty, is a sign that he has done something wrong. On April 30  1984 the mummy was
examined again and on April 30  2008, at 9.18 am, the mummy was DNA identified as Prince Pentawer, son of
Ramesses III. April 30  is an important date. On April 30 , 1945, Gustav Hitler, who assumed his brother Adolf’s
identity, was declared dead, and on April 30,  1946, King Carl Gustav XVI Bernadotte was born in Stockholm. More
info at Aries, Capricorn and the Fullness of Time.

Cairo, Egypt

Ramesses VI, son of
Ramesses III and cousin
of  Ramesses V.

Ramses VI, son of
Ramesses III and cousin of
Ramesses V.

Ramesses VI. The mural in Ramesses VI’s tomb compared to the mural in Setnakhte’s tomb. The motives are similar, but the
message is different. The dark Aten Sun is in front of the king. Behind him is the Sun, a bit lighter and bigger. Below the king’s
penis is a character, a hybrid/virgin. The king helps the virgin up to the Kingdom of Heaven, Aten, by giving her a human-like
body. The virgin holds the sun Aten in her hand on her way up. In other words: The goal is to conquer it. Behind the king we see
the Sun. In the drawing the king moves back and tries to lift himself upwards to the sun by the knowledge he has acquired from
his family. The message is to be delivered in the sign ‘V, Victoria.’ This is a totally different message from the earlier one,
during the reign of Setnakhte. After the murder of Ramesses III and Pentawer’s suicide and turbulence in Ramesses’ family, the
opinion about the main gods the Serpent and the Bull changed. In this message the king himself tries to secretly highlight
himself instead of the Serpent Osiris and tries to start the fight against Khufu/Tutankhamun about the Sun, Sun King or Sun

Binary star system



God. The message also reveals that the blood transformation process failure was a constant theme in the royal palace. We also
notice, that from Dynasty 13 construction of pyramids was over, only ordinary tombs for dead bodies. The kings saw no future
for eternal life. Remains: struggle about the ”Kingdom of Death”.

Ramesses VII,
Son of Ramesses VI

Ramesses VIII,
Son of Ramesses III

Ramesses IX.
Son of Ramesses III

Ramesses X
Son of Ramesses IX

Ramesses XI
Son of Ramesses X

Around 1070 B.C. Dynasty 20 ended, after around 100 years.
The last pharaoh was Ramesses XI, probably a reincarnation of
Prince Pentawer. The whole dynasty is more characterized by
internal antagonism, disruption, expensive festivities and
luxury than concerns about the kingdom. The kingdom became
weaker and weaker, the clergy assumed more and power and
there was chaos, especially during the reign of Ramesses XI.
This king ruled for about 30 years, according to records he
celebrated 30 years in power, Heb Sed, the Sed festival, but
there is no confirmation of that.  A fact is that during Pharaoh
Ramesses XI, the kingdom disintegrated and the New
Kingdom came to an end. This Dynasty 20 reminds me of the
royal family Bernadotte.

.

We can say that the golden history era of the real ancient Egypt was between Dynast 0 and Dynasty 20. At the
beginning brilliant pyramids for the blood transformation were built, obelisks were constructed. Then came the
mastaba (coffin) and finally ordinary graves and there was no time to finish even those. From the exodus from Egypt
and after, focus was on the Middle East (Canaan/Palestine), Mesopotamia, Babylonia and Asia, the history of Israel,
Daniel’s era, carpenter Joseph’s time, Palestine and Europe, and so on. We say that during these periods of time
history repeats itself, so do the lies, power and influence of the clergy.

   The Human Blood and God
Man and God

In our time, the maybe dirtiest and bloodiest war took place between 1939 and 1945. A biblical contribution, where
the Lamb, Jesus Christ, was in focus. Everything focused on him, he made all the decisions. I quote his own words
from Apostle Jacob’s notations about Gnosticism: ”5, Jesus said, "Know what is in front of your face, and what is
hidden from you will be disclosed to you. For there is nothing hidden that will not be revealed. And there is nothing
buried that will not be raised.” – Also Jesus wanted everything that was secret to be revealed and that the world
should acquire knowledge. “16, Jesus said, "Perhaps people think that I have come to cast peace upon the world.
They do not know that I have come to cast conflicts upon the earth: fire, sword, war. 10, Jesus said, "I have cast fire
upon the world, and look, I'm guarding it until it blazes." Then Death starts the real activity … salvation … Amen.
Gustav Hitler did exactly what he told his disciples in Palestine in those days. I did the first compilation of Hitler’s
family at Omnipotent Akhenaten, pp 27-50, the CIA profile of Hitler, the same text and pages, the French magazine
Le Point’s words about Adolf Hitler’s son, see Aries, Capricorn and the End of Time, pages 25-26. And now a
French TV documentary in three parts, broadcast on Swedish television at the beginning of 2013. This documentary
contains maybe the most important facts about Hitler and drives the last nail in the coffin. In retrospect we can say
that this documentary was commissioned from above which transforms what is invisible to something visible. I have
analyzed it, results follow below.



Johann G. Hiendler, Hitler
             1795- 1847

Alois Hitler
1837-1903

Alois Hitler Jr, 1882-1956, first-born. He had nothing to
do with Gustav’s bloody, dirty war.

Gustav Hitler,
1885-1945, declared dead 1887. Gustav assumed Adolf’s identity.

   Otto Hitler
   1887-1945, declared dead 1887

   Adolf Hitler
   1889-1936, declared dead 1945Jean-Marie Loret

    1918-1985

Hitler’s family tree
Simplified

   Edmund Hitler
   1894, declared dead 1900

Adolf’s double #1

Adolf’s double # 5
A reincarnation of the Bull

Unknown

Unknown

We can see that the brothers look like
each other in a biological, physical way,
but are still different.  But the world,
especially the Christians, still see
Adolf’s three brothers as one person,
Adolf.

The Lamb, who takes away the sins of the
world!

Catholicism



The most important issue, still today, is whether the Hitler family were Jews or not. At Omnipotent Akhenaten I
point out that Hitler’s family came from the Wolf Benjamin’s offspring. Now I have fairly good evidence. In the TV
documentary there is a portrait of Klara Hitler, see below.

I do not know who designed this memory picture of the mother Klara Hitler, but that person knew exactly how to arrange a vivid
document describing origin and history. Below the pictures we see a dog, the original animal the family came from, to the right
of the dog we see Adolf’s birth picture. There is an emblem above the dog, it probably belonged to the family. Benjamin was
Jacob’s 12th son. He then returned as Saul, the first King of Israel before the kingdom was divided into the Kingdom of Judah
with the tribes of Judah and Benjamin, and the kingdom of Israel. Because of this, even the Hitler family was regarded as being
Jewish. In those days Adolf’s family had a Jewish doctor who, among other things, treated Klara’s breast cancer. Thus, the
Hitler family were Benjaminites, not Jews. In Christianity there is no difference between a Lion and a Wolf/Dog.  And all
Jacob’s sons are still regarded as being Jews. At that time Gustav Hitler, Jesus Christ, was a Benjaminite, a wolf in sheep’s
clothing.

Gustav Hitler, around 1920 Gustav Hitler, around 1933 Gustav Hitler, 1933

Gustav Hitler, around 1935. The pictures show an oval, symmetrical face with a long,
narrow nose and a squint.  The nose is a bit shorter than the ear. He resembles both his
biological father Alois and his biological mother Klara Hitler. He took over Adolf’s
identity supported by the clergy, the Vatican. These are Gustav Hitler’s attributes.



Otto Hitler , double #1. A symmetrical, oval face with a thick, small potato
nose, squint. The length of the nose is proportionally much longer than the
ear. These are Otto Hitler’s characteristics.

Otto Hitler, double #1.

Adolf Hitler, 1908 Adolf Hitler, 1923 Adolf Hitler, 1924 Adolf Hitler, 1925 Adolf Hitler, 1908

Adolf Hitler, 1923Adolf Hitler, 1928

Adolf Hitler is characterized by his unsymmetrical face. The face is somewhat rounder than Gustav’s and Otto’s
faces. He squints, the length of the nose is proportionally shorter than the ear. Because of this, Adolf’s looks differ
from those of his brothers, above all Gustav Hitler. Gustav gave the orders to kill him around 1936.
More info at Omnipotent Akhenaten, pp 27-28.



Edmund Hitler has a rounder face. It can sometimes look
unsymmetrical but at the same time symmetrical, depending on the
angle of the photography. He also squints. His nose is also
proportionally shorter than the nose. We can certainly see that the
Hitler brothers had the same mother and father (he is a reincarnation
of the Bull, the Bull God, the vegetarian).
At a certain distance from the brothers, at least around 100-150
meters, it may seem as if the same person is speaking and
screaming. Maybe there is a thought behind this, since we, even
today, speak about one and the same person. The name ‘Adolf’ is
permanently wedged into the brains of the world.

Edmund Hitler

Gustav Hitler’s ear pattern Otto Hitler’s ear patter n Adolf Hitler’s ear pattern Edmund Hitler’s ear patt ern

These four ear patterns do not even resemble each other. Each ear has its own special pattern which is very different
the others’. This is another distinct biological proof that Gustav Hitler was not identical with Adolf Hitler and that
the brothers Gustav, Otto and Edmund, despite being declared dead, continued to live in secrecy. Later they
appeared as doubles. More comparisons at Omnipotent Akhenaten, pp 29 and 34. In the documentaries we most
often see Otto and Edmund Hitler in public speeches to audiences and on the radio, at the beginning even Adolf. We
most often see Gustav Hitler during transportation, without speeches. He is only waving at the crowds.

Edmund Hitler, double #5



At the age of eight, Adolf was a choirboy in this monastery. Above the door of the monastery there is a strange cross.
A swastika, symbolizing mankind in this context.

In India, the swastika is, among other things, an ancient symbol of the eternal movements of mankind. The monastery was probably
founded in 1860. Note that the swastika turns clockwise, typical of the church.

At the age of 19, he wanted to study at the Academy of Fine Arts in Vienna to become an artist. He copied postcard
which he sold to tourists in order to earn his living. He was a keen admirer of Rickard Wagner.

At the Academy he handed in some drawing samples, he
was, however, not accepted. But his drawing ability was
good enough to prove his own identity later on, against
Gustav Hitler, declared dead. Maybe that was what was
most important. Anyway, he was a talented artist.



A gas grenade, which temporarily blinded Adolf, exploded on October 13, 1918. He was admitted to a military hospital
north of Berlin. After treatment he regained his vision. The same year he was awarded the Iron Cross. He is supposed to
have heard an inner voice which urged him to liberate the German people, to restore the pride of Germany, monarchy
instead of republic. This was a turning point in Adolf’s life. Now we see why he was not accepted by the Academy.

”Then I decided to become a politician.”
       - To the memory of  the mission from an inner voice -

A beer hall in Munich 1920

GustavAdolf



On August 13, Adolf made his debut in this beer hall in Munich and founded the new party, the
National Socialist German Workers' Party.  This hall became later on the party’s head quarters. In
this beer hall Hitler designed the party’s symbol and planned for its future and goals. The drawing
can be found in a film documentary and has three parts, see below.

This is the complete drawing by Adolf Hitler, according to the signature. There is nothing in the document
about this drawing, besides the fact that the swastika is a symbol of eternal hatred of the Jews.

Did Adolf really draw this? I intend to write some words to analyze the significance of the symbols, and then come to a
conclusion below.



A six-pointed star, symbol of David and the Jews. A swastika is placed
into a circle, clockwise. This means that all Jews will be obliterated
from the eternal movement of Mankind, 1920. In this context, Adolf
Hitler represented the six-pointed star, together with the Jews.

An eight-pointed star, symbol of Jesus/Stephen and the hybrids.
The swastika, drawn from one side as an arrow, shows that the
eight-pointed star shall execute its sentence concerning the Jews.
Here, the eight-pointed star is Gustav Hitler himself.

The swastika that turns clockwise
stands for evil, such as death and
destruction.

If we take a closer look at the
contents of the drawing it seems as if
Gustav consciously chose a
clockwise swastika, and the whole
world are familiar with the result. I
am fairly sure that this drawing with
symbols and signature belongs to
Gustav Hitler. The drawing is well
thought-out.

Generally, the swastika that turns
anti-clockwise represents good-
ness, happiness, success and re-
birth.

When we mention the name
Hitler, we automatically think of
Adolf, as we do with this
signature. Adolf starts with the
letter A,a, but this letter does not
resemble A,a, it looks more like
C,c,  which in turn resembles G,g.
My opinion is that this signature
points to Gustav Hitler. The
inclination of the letter is too big
and we cannot see that it is
supposed to be A,a.



This, in fact, means that Gustav and Adolf appeared simultaneously. But they were not together, Gustav’s activities
were exactly the opposite of Adolf’s. This became clear when he spoke in the beer hall, according to the
documentary. He was active behind Adolf’s back and he seemed to have a secret permission to do so. Adolf was
against communism and called it ‘The Red Pest’, while Gustav was against the Jews.
In 1923 Adolf was involved in a coup and was charged with high treason. He was put on trial on February 28, 1924,
together with Rudolf Hess. In 1923 the swastika disappeared, so did the name Adolf Hitler. In secrecy, Gustav was
also closely involved in everything even if it all happened in the name of Adolf.

The trial of Adolf Hitler, among others. Two portraits from the proceedings. These two portraits are similar, but do they
really portray the same person, or the prosecutor? We can see that they are brothers, but still two different individuals. One of
them is certainly Adolf. There are four options, four pictures below to chose from in order to identify Adolf at the trial.

2
3 41

Four brothers who look like each other, but there are certain differences. One of them roughly matches the drawing #1
from the trial. One more profile picture roughly matches picture #2 from the trial.

1 2

1 2 1

Adolf Hitler,  approximate comparison Gustav Hitler, approximate comparison

The documentary says nothing about the length of the trial. But it seems as if prosecutors were exchanged without
any problems during the proceedings. Gustav followed Adolf step-by-step. Adolf had no idea about that.

Struggle Struggle

3



Outside the court people gathered, waiting for the sentence Adolf received a five-year prison sentence, according to the papers

Rudolf Hess, one of Adolf’s best friends, was sentenced
to fifteen months in prison. Hess had a cell next to
Hitler.

Adolf Hitler in his cell

Adolf Hitler, another prisoner and Rudolf Hess, probably in the
warden’s office, 1924.

Adolf and Rudolf in the warden’s office in 1924. We can
clearly see that Adolf is very anxious.



In Adolf’s cell they write the original manuscript of the book which was later named Mein
Kampf. Adolf dictates and Rudolf types on a typewriter given to Adolf by a bank. Rudolf’s
ideas were included, thus a combination of their best opinions on the world, about communists
and opponents. Paper was offered by Winifred Wagner. The original title was Four and a Half
Years (of Struggle) Against Lies, Stupidity and Cowardice, by Adolf Hitler and Rudolf HessFour and a Half Years (of Struggle)

Against Lies, Stupidity and Cowardice

If a civilized human being sees a book title about
Four and a Half Years (of Struggle) Against Lies,
Stupidity and Cowardice, then the book is not
about ‘Mein Kampf’, My Struggle about what?
Adolf’s and Rudolf’s views of the world was that it
consisted of lies, political lies as well as religious
ones. In Germany stupid ideas about hatred against
and the killing of Jews were brought to the surface,
foolish ideas which destroyed the country. Add to
that the cowardly reluctance to start talking about
reality, truth and the existing chaos.

Adolf and Rudolf regarded communists as the worst enemy, a danger also to Germany. The party he founded stood
up for the country of Germany, as one nation with a socialist aim within the labor movement, i.e. a party for
‘ordinary’ people. They certainly wrote much about the new party NSDAP and its future activities and possibilities
since the party had been founded only four and a half year earlier. One part of the book was about reality and the
reasons behind the coup. They had nothing negative to say about the Jews since Adolf and his whole family (Gustav
Hitler included) were regarded as being Jews in Austria. Even Rudolf Hess was a Benjaminite. My personal
judgment of the original book is that it was written in a fairly human way. Reality and truth were in focus together
with their struggle to primarily fight the German lies.

After having finished the manuscript they handed it over to so-called Nazi journalists, among them Gustav Hitler.
According to the documentary, the whole manuscript was rewritten. In other words: it was Gustav Hitler himself
who rewrote the original manuscript and gave it the title My Struggle, Mein Kampf. His personal struggle against
the Jews and his real face are reflected in the book. One thing is that he wrote down his feelings and hatred, but the
dirtiest issue is that he wrote in Adolf’s name with the approval of some Nazi so-called journalists. The documentary
does not mention that Adolf and Rudolf were allowed to read and approve of the new manuscript.



Gustav Hitler

According to the documentary, Gustav Hitler met Winifred Wagner who gave paper to Adolf Hitler. Simultaneously
Adolf and Rudolf were in prison writing the book Four and a Half Years (of Struggle) Against Lies, Stupidity and
Cowardice. Strange!? The documentary suggests that Rickard Wagner and his daughter-in-law were Adolf’s great idols. At
that time she met Gustav. He was not known officially and Winifred may have believed she met Adolf. Did they secretly meet
in the prison? She knew that Adolf and Rudolf Hess were there, locked up.

The Nazis planned for 50 million readers of the book, but the first edition only sold around 20,000 copies. People were not
interested in madness, the book was a fiasco from the start. The Nazis looked upon it as a new Bible and some copies were
printed and published as medieval bibles.

        The production of Mein Kampf as a Bible.



In the Bible, only the religious message is described. Whose idea was it to compare the book Mein Kampf to the
gospels? Guilt: The clergy and Gustav Hitler. Step 1: a comparison with Christianity.

At the end of 1924 both Adolf Hitler and Rudolf Hess were released. Their party, the NSDAP, had many problems,
chaos reigned. Some members supported Adolf, some did not. The fact was that the party split up after the publication
of the book. Adolf was very busy, he purged the party and started from the beginning. But the hatred of the Jews and
other sensitive issues which he had nothing to do with remained connected to his name. His name had to spread the
contents of the book and the dark, dirty clouds started to loom large.

Adolf loved the Bavarian Mountains. There he rented a small cottage, relaxed and had a good time together with his wolfhound.

Gustav also visited the Bavarian mountains, the same place. He relaxed and enjoyed the company of his black wolfhound.
Note that also the doubles visited this place.



The second edition of the book did not sell better than the first one.

Horst Wessel, an insignificant criminal man, was made leader of the SA group. He was killed and became a martyr among the
Nazis. Joseph Goebbels spoke at his funeral and compared Wessel’s suffering and death with Jesus Christ.

Goebbles ordered these photos to be taken, Nazism should resemble Christianity. Step 2: a comparison to
Christianity. For the first time, Jesus Christ appears in Nazi activities. Since Gustav Hitler did not officially exist,
Wessel was chosen as a symbol. Gustav was a secret reincarnation of, for example, Jesus/Stephen.

Adolf Hitler, leader of the NSDAP, which has grown substantially. Adolf looks very resolute. He seems to battling against odds.



1933

On January 31, 1933, Hitler became Germany’s new Reichskanzler ten years after his trial.  There is no joy about the
appointment on his face, he still looks very worried. After the appointment of a Reichskanzler, the government was
announced.

The Hitler Government, 1933

Wilhelm
Frick



Alfred
Hugenberg

Alfred
Hugenberg

Franz
von PapenFranz

von Papen

During the ongoing formation of the government, Franz von Papen suddenly turned to Alfred Hugenberg and said: ”Hitler is
our man.” Hugenberg, self-restrained, answered: ”We have the power over him.” This is the shortest and most important
political conversation of our time, revealing everything about the Nazis, the government is in power, not Adolf. Franz von Papen
thought of Gustav and Alfred Hugenberg in his head thought of Adolf since Gustav did not officially exist. NSDAP got two seats,
home secretaries were Wilhelm Frick and H. Göring.

Adolf Hitler
Marionette

The pictures from the formation of the government in 1933 confirm that Gustav Hitler was the chancellor of Germany using
Adolf’s name, he formed the government. He looks much older than Adolf. This also confirms that the ministers Alfred
Hugenberg and Franz von Papen were in the government. Note that Herrmann Göring was also a minister, but not Rudolf Hess.
This was the government of revenge, evil and terror. It was Franz von Papen who, on July 20, 1933, signed the agreement between
the government of death, the Nazis, and the Holy See, the government of Pius XI, about cooperation, especially towards the Jews.

Gustav Hitler
     Chancellor



When the new government of Death was announced, a student named Sebastian Hafer from Berlin had this to say
about the future and the new government: ”I heard the news, I am paralyzed with fear, I feel the smell of blood
and dirt. I see something dangerous, a beast, with its claws at my face.” A wolf in sheep’s clothing. The student
was terribly right and saw the correct animal before him, the animal which had started to remove the sins of the
world. The animal started salvation at wrong end.

When total power was secured, Joseph Goebbles said this about the Jews on a live radio broadcast on February 10,
1933: ”If representatives of the Jewish press believe they can scare us by veiled threats they should watch out! There
is eventually an end to our patience and we will ram the audacious lies down their throats. As to the rest, members
of the party and the SS men can be calm: Sooner than we all believe time has come for the red terror. And Karl
Liebknecht’s gentlemen will soon hear new music!” Officially, for the first time, Jews were threatened by the
government. Not by Gustav Hitler but by his right hand , Joseph Goebbles. He accused and threatened the Jews
without any reason or proof. Joseph Goebbles was the main liar and hater of the Jews in Germany and Europe. We
can clearly see from his speeches that Adolf was only a puppet in the activities of the Nazi government and this
government of Death abused that fact. Alfred Hugenberg was completely right when he said that Adolf had no
power, it was the government, then led by Gustav Hitler using Adolf’s name.

Note that neither Adolf nor Gustav Hitler or anyone of the doubles made a public threatening speech against the
Jews. Only Joseph Goebbels had bad things to say about them according to the documentary. The speeches by the
doubles were incoherent and Hitler was called ‘chatterbox’ by Mussolini. But Mussolini did know he had met a
double, not at the beginning anyway.

”Triumph of the
Will”

   by Leni Riefenstahl
1933

Film director Leni Riefenstahl’s film Triumph of the Will showed the new cult, the basis of which was race and
power. The leader and his disciples. Christianity, the original resurrection within Nazism. The leader was Gustav
Hitler who had removed Adolf from this context. Apostle #1 was Rudolf Hess, as a puppet. Apostle #2 was Joseph
Goebbles, the minister of lies and propaganda, and apostle #3 was Hermann Göring, designer of concentration camps.
He was married to a Swedish woman, Karin, and visited Sweden a number of times. There were good relations
between the government of death and the Swedish government and the royal Bernadotte family.  Crown Prince
Gustav Adolf married a Nazi German woman, mother of the present king. In this way Sweden betrayed the Jew Raoul
Wallenberg in 1945. Step 3, a comparison between Christianity and the Lamb/Jesus. Then came the film Triumph
of the Will, 1935, with similar contents.

This was written about Gustav Hitler: ”A
creature made of clay who could blind people
with his infernal power.” This power obviously
also affected the young photographer and film
director Leni Riefenstahl, and sucked her into
the Nazi black hole.



Much happened after the seizure of power in 1933. Chaos continued. The Book Mein Kampf was compulsory reading
in all families. The new edition was a bit revised. Gustav Hitler’s picture is on the book, but still with Adolf Hitler’s
name. The book is full of hatred and ends like this: ”A state which avoids the mixture of races will certainly rule the
world.” He mainly struggled against his younger brother Adolf and the Jews.

Thor was Adolf’s prototype here in the
Nordic countries. Thor was one of the
primary gods in ancient Nordic
mythology, candid and quick-witted. He
defended the order of Midgard against
the constant threat from the powers of
chaos in Utgard. Many hilarious stories
touch situations created by Loki’s
treacherousness. In the Ragnarok stories
Thor kills the Midgard Serpent but falls
down after nine having taken nine steps.

Thor’s struggle against the Chaos
Serpent

Two goats pulled Thor’s chariot, his voyage across the sky has been connected to thunder and rain. One of his attributes was
the hammer Mjölnir which together with the belt and the iron gloves were frequently used in his struggle against the giants.
Thor had a touch of fertility god and has occasionally been seen as the deity of farmers. The two goats which pulled Thor’s
chariot were symbols of the zodiac sign Capricorn.

Midgårdsormen



In 1933 Adolf Hitler established an ancient
Nordic funeral ritual from Thor’s times,
dedicated to the fourteen Nazis who were
killed at the 1923 coup. This was an annual
memorial service and was also called ”the
Day of the Bloody Banner”. It seems as if
Adolf knew about Gustav’s existence and
the idea behind the funeral cult from Thor’s
era was to point out that he did not have
anything to do with Gustav’s bloody
activities. The annual memorial service was
led by various doubles.

Hermann Göring

Rudolf Hess

Adolf Hitler

1935, a party meeting in Nuremberg. Maybe the last of the pictures of Adolf Hitler, sitting next to Rudolf Hess. The
picture illustrates a low-spirited atmosphere at the meeting; silence and terror. Adolf was probably killed in 1936, on
Gustav Hitler’s orders.

19 years old

44 years old

In a speech, D-1 (double #1), Otto Hitler, talked about the new, Arian type: ”The German youth of the future must be
slim and trim, swift as a greyhound, tough as leather and hard as Krupp steel! We have to educate a new type of
person.” Joseph Goebbels also several times mentioned the tall, blond, Arian  type of pure blood. But this is fact:
Neither Otto Hitler nor Joseph Goebbels became Arian, a hybrid.

Adolf Hitler’s mission was, as far as I understand, to select 12,000 Benjaminites from, among others, the German
people. More info at Omnipotent Akhenaten, page 42 and others.  Otto Hitler’s and Goebbel’s new Arian and pure-
blooded type are 144,000 hybrids. Hybrids do not propagate, they keep the pure Arian hybrid blood, thus a pure-
blooded race. More info at Aries, Capricorn and the End of Time, page 31.

An Arian/Hybrid creature An Arian/Hybrid Creature



In the documentary, among the Jews, I find a Benjaminite who is sharing his origins with Hitler’s family. According to
this, Benjaminites and Jews will be placed by pure-blood, Arian hybrids. This was of course Gustav Hitler’s idea and
goal, because he was of pure blood and a hybrid.

The man of death and evil walks with a limp in his right leg. He cannot serve during the First World War. He cannot join
the veterans and this torments him throughout his life. What can he do? Well, propaganda. This is a micro card with
Goebbel’s handwriting, very difficult to read. This is his diary, where he writes: “We have expelled the enemies of the
country! We understand that here is a plague spot which threatens the health of the Arian people.” Rats run across the film
screen. – The Nazis’ anti-Semitic perception was strong, the Jews were looked upon as vermin, parasites sucking life out of
the population. The head of SS, Himmler, saw the films as important indoctrination for his troups, those who would carry
out the mass murders. The rat metaphor was used to justify “the final solution”. The Jews are described as being a
destructive part of the population, a part that has to be eliminated for the survival of the rest of the population. The Jew
must go, according to many of the messages in the film The Eternal Jew. The Jews of Palestine were top-intelligent,
educated and knowledgeable, an élite people in those days.  Also other people with knowledge were called Jews, even if
they were not. The majority of people in the New Testament, NT, are Jews. We can also read in NT that people were well
educated individuals. During all these years the Jews have hung on to this position while churches and the clergy led by
Jesus hated and still hate the Jews. One example of this is the era of Gustav Hitler and, regrettably, hate still reigns today.
The Jews have one weakness: it is difficult for them to follow their own history, they had no idea that their Messiah,
Joseph jr/David, the son of the Jewess Mary, was crucified and another son of hers, Tibor E, was killed at the beginning of
the 1970’s. The churches have taken advantage of this weakness and they have abused and killed the Jews in the name of
religion for a crime the Jews never committed. The Nazis also sent Romani people, the old and the sick, to their death.

The Swedish legation in Budapest, 1944. Raoul Wallenberg came here on July 9, 1944.
   On July 7, 1944, everything about the mission was prepared and he was already on his way.



WRB, War Refugee Board, USA
financed, selected, and sent Raoul
to Budapest. 29/06/44

A royal passport was issued by the
Bernadotte royal family on June 30,
1944. The king was Gustaf V.

Raoul Wallenberg also received a diplomat’s passport issued
by the Foreign office, June 30 1944 in Stockholm.

When the Nazis, on March 19, 1944, occupied Hungary, Regent Miklós Horthy was ordered by Gustav Hitler,
through Nazi Germany’s envoy the country, SS-Brigadeführer Edmund Veesenmayer, to come up with a final
solution of the Jewish issue. He meant that Horthy had been too gentle towards the Jews. In other words: Horthy
defended the Jews. In the Christian world they know that March 19 is Joseph’s namesday, the carpenter and builder
of houses, Joseph. The date March 19 reveals everything about Gustav Hitler’s extinction of the Jews. Joseph himself
was not a Jew but his partner in Nazareth, Mary, was Jewish and the biological mother of Joseph Jr. Gustav Hitler
was chasing her and her family in Hungary. The special Act on Jews which was passed in Hungary 1942 was
activated. This meant that all Jews were forced to display the yellow star of David on their chests. The Head of State
Horthy was forced to enforce the law. It was embarrassing for him since his wife was a Jew as well as his whole
family. In this way, G. Hitler and his executioners hoped to also arrest the Jewess Mary E and her family. The primary
aim for Gustav was to kill them. The Jewess Mary E and her family had German origins and their first step was to
‘hungaryfy’ their name and simultaneously convert to the Roman Catholic religion. Thereafter they were protected
and did not have to display the star of David. The Hungarian Catholic church led by Arch Bishop Serédi protected
Hungarian as well as Polish Jews and did not obey orders from the Holy See concerning the persecution of Jews. The
Serpent Gustav Hitler knew that he had to eliminate the Jewess Mary and her family in order to avoid failure in his
next life.

In Washington they knew something about this and via the WRB, the architect, businessman, the Swedish Jew Raoul
Wallenberg was sent to Budapest to save as many Jews as possible. Raoul Wallenberg was the right person, he
studied in the US, his intellect was superior and he already had business contacts in Budapest. The Jewess Mary E and
her family did not live in Budapest, which is why Raoul did not meet them. Apart from Horthy, Gustav Hitler had
another enemy in Budapest, the younger brother of my paternal grandfather, vitéz Kemény Simon, who then was a
commander in Bátaszék, on the outskirts of the town of Baja. Raoul was an exceptional combination of diplomat and
businessman, in a short period of time he built an important network and spread it all over Hungary. He developed
contacts with the head of state Horthy, the government and Foreign Secretary báró Kemény Gábor and his Jewish
wife Erzsébet Fuchs. Raoul’s worst enemy was the Nazi Adolf Eichmann. Raoul procured vast information from
different, also secret, sources. Finally he also heard about Simon, which means that Raoul knew about him. The Nazis
had a secret code for Simon: Adam. Using this secret code, the Nazis were going kill him in Bátaszék, where he was
a commander.



The head of state, vitéz Horthy Miklós, announces on the radio that Hungary had severed any contacts with Nazi Germany on November
3, 1944. It was Horthy’s last speech, a speech of defense from the head of state of Hungary. Maybe also the last picture of him..

In 1944, between April and October, the Nazis had sent almost half a million Hungarian Jews to their death against
Horthy’s will. He had had enough of the killings and on November 3 he announced that Hungary had severed
contacts with the German Nazis. Shortly after the short broadcast speech he and people around him were kidnapped
by the Nazis and deported to Nazi Germany. They never returned to Hungary.

Within 24 hours the Arrow Cross party assumed  power in Hungary, their leader was Szállasi

The new head of state took the oath on November 4,1944.
Center:  the Holy Crown of St Stephen

The Holy Crown of St Stephen



The leader of the Arrow Cross Party, the Nazi Szállasi Ferenc, took the oath on November 4, 1944. In front of him in the picture
is the Holy Crown of St Stephen, placed on a Bible. This is the oath:
”I, Szállasi Ferenc, leader of this nation, promise before God that I will serve Hungary.” The transition of power was executed
within 24 hours and, according to the new power, the Hungarians finally had a place of their own. Gustav Hitler gave the orders
to arrest, kidnap and deport Horthy and his allies to Germany. An excellent combination: Gustav Hitler, a reincarnation os
Jesus/the Lamb and St Stephen/István. The hangman of Gustav and Death took the oath before the crown which Gustav/Stephen
1044 years ago made himself, probably in the town of Székesfehérvár. More info at Obscure Magyar, pp 43-46.  This animal
sent hundreds of thousands Hungarians and the Nation to their death according to the Holy Crown, the Crown of Death. Again,
Hungary was at the mercy of death, and war.

This was the situation for Raoul Wallenberg and despite setbacks he managed to save thousands of Hungarian Jews. But harder
times awaited Simon, the brother of my paternal grandfather. Since he never acknowledged Szàllasi, his liquidation was close.
The Hungarian Church was almost dissolved by the Nazis in December, 1944. Before Adolf Eichmann had to flee from
Hungary, he found out, from a Russian spy, that Raoul knew about Simon and that that he wanted to warn him that his life was
in danger. Adolf Eichmann found time to start the code Adam in his secret telegraphs in his secret circles. As a result of this,
Raoul was disconnected by Stalin on January 17, 1945, and Simon was shot to death together with his youngest son Géza in
Bátaszék by Nazis at the end of the war in 1945. Gustav Hitler, The Lamb, got rid of two enemies, Simon and Raoul. Pope Pius
XII was also satisfied. The Swedish legation in Budapest came to Stockholm on April 18, 1945. More info at Obscure Magyar,
pp 58-60, and at Foundation Stone, pp 56-57.

When Otto Hitler, D-1, for the last time, left the bunker using Adolf’s name, this memorial photo of Klara Hitler was found on
his desk. This may reveal that knew that he had been declared dead but Klara Hitler was his biological mother and Adolf was
his younger, biological brother. It was probably Otto Hitler who paid a visit to his parents’ grave on June 12, 1939. This can be
reason why, when Gustav Hitler, using Adolf’s name, was pronounced dead on April 30, 1945, Otto and Eva Braun were shot
because they knew all the secrets surrounding Gustav Hitler.  More info at Omnipotent Akhenaten, p 41.



Titanic

The demise of Nazism. History compares the demise of Nazism with that of the Titanic’s. Nazism was compared
to Christianity, i.e. Nazism was the ’small’ Christianity which reflected the secret activities of Jesus, the Lamb, in
Palestine where Jesus assumed Joseph Jr’s identity. In the ‘small’ Christianity, Gustav assumed Adolf’s identity
and set fire to the world, around 50 million people were killed. It was a small foretaste of the Lamb’s salvation, he
started to remove the sins of the world in this way. It was the latest presentation by Death.

What do these pictures reveal? They reveal that the Jews still were an elite people during the Nazi period. Their knowledge was transferred to a
monument, a living document by the artist Pál Pátzay, 1949. Note that the serpent carries a swastika on its head. The picture illustrates Raoul’s
struggle against the serpent, the Jews’ struggle against Nazism and Christianity. Also note that the serpent is shaped like the letter ‘M ’ =
virgin/hybrid. In Sweden nobody cared to save Raoul, nobody except his mother and his close family. She writes in a book: “I do not exactly
have a feeling that our government is active any more. If it actually works against us, we don’t know.” 1974. According to his mother, Raoul
was not religious. For those concerned in Sweden, Hermann Göring and Gustav Hitler were more important than Raoul Wallenberg.

Popes at the beginning of the
life of the Hitler brothers.

 Leo XIII, (1878–1903), Vincenzo Gioacchino Raffaele Luigi Pecci
                                  258, 102 Light in the skySt. Pius X, (1903–1914), Giuseppe Melchiorre Sarto

                          259, 103 Burning fire

 Park of St Stephen,
Budapest

          1949-04-10

Debrecen 1954



The last Nazi pope

Gregorius XVII, (1958-1989),

Pope Pius XII died on October 9, 1958. After his death, Cardinal Giuseppe Siri of Genova was elected new pope on
October 26, 1958. Pict. #1 shows the white smoke from the Sistine Chapel confirming that a new pope had been
elected, Pope Gregory XVII. After that, black smoke was seen indicating that that the cardinals had failed to elect a
new pope. On October 28, 1958, Cardinal Angelo Giuseppe Roncalli from Venice was elected new pope, John XXIII.
What happened in the conclave between October 26 and 28? How could they elect two popes almost simultaneously?
Why was the election of Cardinal Siri declared invalid? Cardinal Siri was Pius XII’s legitimate successor.

To find out what happened to the conclave during these days, we should dive deep into the secret world, see what has
been preserved and analyze that.

1 2

  Pius XII, (1939–1958)
262, 106 Angelic Shepherd

Benedict XV, (1914–1922), Giacomo della Chiesa
                     260, 104 Religion Destroyed

Pius XI, (1922–1939), Ambrogio Damiano Achille Ratti
                               261, 105 Intrepid Faith



The 1958 Conclave, Ocktober 25-28
Key officials

Vacant, Camerlengo Benetto Cardinal Masella.
1958-1970

Benedetto Aloisi Masella (29 June 1879 – 30 September 1970)

Dean, Eugene-Gabriel- Gervais-Laurent Tisserant
Cardinal Eugène Tisserant, 24 March 1884 - 21 February 1972 Sub-Dean,   Clemente Micara

Cardinal Clemente Micara 24 December 1879 – 11 March 1965)

Protodeacon, Nicola Canali
Kardinal Nicola Canali  (6 June 1874 – 3 August 1961)

The Lion, was born in   Linköping
24/12/1958, Sweden

The Lamb was born in Hungary 1948
Rome/The Vatican, 1958

Protodeacon, Nicola Canali
Kardinal Nicola Canali  (6 June 1874 – 3 August 1961)



The 1958 Conclave, Ocktober 25-28
Sistine Chapel

Cardinal Giuseppe Siri

Cardinal Angelo Giuseppe Roncalli
Camerlengo Benetto Cardinal Masella



Cardinal Roncalli
John XXIII  (1958–1963)

263, 107 Shepherd and SailorCardinal Siri
Gregory XVII  (1958-1989),

Cardinal Siri’s coat of arms. At the center is a red cross
corresponding to the yellow Star of David. We also see two 5-
pointed star against a yellow background signifying planet
Venus, also called the Morning Star. Red means blood. Two
French lilies also have a red background which hear means
rebirth, reincarnation of the Lamb as well as of the Lion.

The pope was called the ’Red Pope’, here red again means
blood. Why was he called the Red Pope? We go a hundred
years back in time!

Pope John XXIII’s Arch Bishp´s coat of arms. At the
center we see a royal tower. Behind the royal tower we
see three fields in red and white. To the right, in the red
field we see a lily. The lily is, among other things, a
symbol of reincarnation, in this case the reincarnation
of the Lamb.

We also find John XXIII if we go back in time.

1378–1394 1378–1389

Clement VII, antipope 32, (1378–1394), Avignon,
                                     Robert Graf von Genf
                        42. From the Apostolic Cross

   Urban VI, (1378–1389), Roma, Bartolomeo Prignano
                       204, 45. From a Pregnant Hell.



The antipope’s coat of arms. Saint Malachy gave him the
motto ’From the apostolic cross’. The cross is symbolically
connected to Jerusalem and the future Swedish flag.

Clement VII, ”the mild”, Robert of Geneva. After having
been elected cardinal, he made his mercenaries in the war
against Florence carry out a massacre on 10,000 people in
Cesena on February 1-3, 1377. History named him ‘the Red
Cardinal, butcher of Cesena.

When the papal activities in Avignon were finished and the
new pope, Urban VI, had been crowned in Rome in 1378,
Clement VII was elected antipope by the apostates, mostly
French cardinals. This was the start of the Western Schism
1378-1417. Clement was acknowledged in several countries
but did not manage to subdue the larger part of western
Christianity. Antipope Clement VII was a red pope, a bloody
pope. He fled from Rome to Avignon, where he died.

The pope’s coat of arms. Against a yellow background we see a
blue eagle. Saint Malachy called him and his program ‘From a
pregnant hell’. The eagle is a national coat of arms in many
countries and for many rich families who fought each other.
Chaos and hell prevailed in those days.

Gregory XI moved the papacy from Avignon back to Rome. To
ensure that no moving back to Avignon would occur, the people
of Rome and the clergy insisted that his successor be Italian. So,
Urban VI was elected pope, but this became the cause of the
Great Schism in the history of the papacy.

He was also involved in various murders. But they were not
directed against the people but against the ruling queen of
Naples, Joanna, who was defeated, captured and murdered.
In 1389 Urban decided that Virgin Mary’s  visit was to be
celebrated annually as a general church festival on July 2.
According to many sources, Joanna was poisoned by the
Romans.

Pope John XVI.  He was appointed antipope by the Crescentius
family against Gregory V, supported by Otto III.  More info at
Obscure Magyar, pp 38-40 and at Foundation Stone, pp 43-45
and 68-70. According to Book of Revelation he was a red pope,
a bloody pope who was behind the bloody attack against
Hungary in 997. He also dethroned Prince Géza and introduced
Christianity via Saint Stephen. Thousands of innocent people
were killed by his bloody attack.

John XVI, antipope 16, 997-998,   Johannes Philagathus



The Crown of Saint Stephen, or the ”Corona Latina”.
Philip the Apostle has a letter, ’M’ in his hand.  ‘M’ stands for
virgin/hybrid. Jesus/Stephen was a virgin. Philip the Apostle was a
faithful disciple of Jesus’ and Stephen pointed him out on his crown
with ’M’. Pope John XVI appointed Stephen King of Hungary by a
bloody coup. I believe the pope was a reincarnation of Philip the Apostle
and appointed Stephen King of Hungary.

My own opinion is that one of the cardinals vetoed Cardinal Siri shortly after him being elected new pope by the
conclave on October 26, 1958. We will never know who did this. I know that Cardinal Siri was a reincarnation of
Philip the Apostle, Pope John XVI and Antipope Clement VII. He was called The Pope in Red, i.e. the bloody pope.
To make a victory possible for the Lamb in my father’s paternity suit (Venus, the morning star and a lily are symbols
on his coat of arms), as the only-begotten son, maybe he should have started a bloodbath. One of the cardinals had
very negative and dark knowledge and feeling about Cardinal Siri. He was able to motivate his feelings in a sensible
way, so the conclave changed their minds and revoked his election. Then Cardinal Roncalli was elected new pope on
October 28, 1958. After two days of secret and intensive discussions, the conclave reached a decision. Siri’s
supporters called the conclave ’dark powers’. I believe it was Cardinal Roncalli who vetoed Cardinal Siri. Roncalli
was a reincarnation of, among others, Pope Urban VI. In an earlier life they had met in 1378 and at a similar conclave
they both were elected popes. Thus, the reason for being disconnected by the conclave was Siri’s past and his views.
Thereafter all popes were declared illegitimate by Siri’s supporters, i.e. antipopes. More info at Aries, Capricorn and the
End of Time, page 15. Back to Pope Pius XII, who was the Nazis’ last pope.

   Pius XII, (1939–1958), Eugenio Maria Giuseppe Giovanni Pacelli
                                   262, 106 Angelic Shepherd

Cardinal
Dominico
Tardini

1954-12-02
Cardinal TardiniCardinal Tardini



After the Lamb had been officially pronounced dead in Hungary, the clergy secretly took care of him. The same year
a strange event took place in the Vatican, with Pope Pius XII. ”And when, at sunrise the second day of December
1954, the pope slowly recited the prayer Anima Christi, Christ approached him in a revelation.” Many months later,
when his period of illness was finally over and his health had returned, this story was accidentally made public.
(Cardinal Tardini)  This was the most important event that was leaked from the Vatican during his pontificate: on
December 2, 1954, he welcomed the six-year-old Lamb from Hungary. He was taken from hid biological parents,
the contact with them was severed. Thereafter, in secrecy, selected nuns took care of him in the Vatican. The Holy
See did exactly the same thing with the dead brothers Gustav, Otto and Edmund Hitler. The Lamb was a
reincarnation of, among others, Gustav and Saint Stephen.

1958-10-28

24/12/1958

The Lion was born in
Linköping 24/12/1958

Sweden

The Lamb was born in
Hungary 1948

Rome/The Vatican, 1958

Linköping 1958. In spring 1958 my father Tibor bought a house in Linköping via his then employer and could move in together
with Jewess Mary E, they were partners. Easter that year was at the beginning of April and to celebrate, my father and Maria
travelled on my father’s motorcycle to Maria’s sister’s family who at that time lived in another city. My father, Maria’s elder sister
and her two children went shopping and taking care of things connected to the Easter festivities. Maria and her brother-in-law
remained at home. Then she became pregnant. After the Easter weekend they went back home to Linköping together. Maria was
afraid of her elder sister’s reaction and to conceal her brother-in-law’s fatherhood from the child she reported her pregnancy to the
proper authority in Linköping with my father Tibor as the child’s father.

John XXIII  (1958–1963), Angelo Giuseppe Roncalli
                      263, 107 Shepherd and Sailor



Maria could communicate in German while my father found the Swedish language difficult. At the beginning of
September, 1958, Jewess Maria started to more intensively explain to my father that the authorities wanted him to
confirm in writing the future housing of Maria and the future child. There were, however, several arguments between
my father and Maria about the pregnancy, because he had no idea about how she became pregnant.  In Hungary my
father worked as a bus driver and he suffered from rheumatism. To ease the pain he used pills prescribed by the
doctor, also in Linköping. The pills made him sterile, something Maria did not know.

On September 18, 1958, in the office of an agency in Linköping, my father signed a blank document. The official in
charge, using his index finger, pointed out where he wanted my father’s signature. Then Maria also signed another
blank page of the document. After that they both left the office.  My father believed he had signed, on the blank
document, something to do with the child’s housing. My father did not know any Swedish and there was no
interpreter present. In this case Maria deliberately duped my father and also lied to the agency. After my father and
Maria had left the office, the official filled out the form. In Hungary my father did not trust the communists, but he
was sure no Swedish authority would commit a crime in their public function.
What he really signed was a paternity admission and an agreement of maintenance to Jewess Maria’s brother-in-law’s
child till 1975, when he would be 17 years old. On the document there is no information about the name, gender or
identity, i.e. it is empty and invalid according to many lawyers. In the correspondence between my father and the
proper authorities the Lamb is of female gender.

Linköping, Christmas Eve, 1958
On Christmas Eve Maria was in hospital. Since it was a long weekend, the neighbor Harry and his family invited my
father to spend Christmas with them. It was very cold and a lot of snow. Between eleven and eleven thirty at night the
assistant nurse phoned from the hospital. She said there were problems, Jewess Maria could give birth very soon. She
had to call for a doctor and a nurse since she was alone, there was some panic on the ward. She also asked if my
father Tibor could come immediately. The neighbor Harry answered that they had already drunk some wine
(regarding driving) and time was too short. The neighbor Harry predicted a boy. The next call came around ten
minutes after midnight. The same assistant nurse reported an additional problem. The boy was born exactly at
midnight and they did not know how to confirm the date of birth: December 24 or 25? And the delivery, by the way,
had been difficult. The truth was that neither my father nor Marie was religious. The document was issued on January
19, 1959, with the Jewess’ maiden name E… and little Tibor’s day of birth, December 24, 1958, the hospital in
Linköping chose that date. On the document, his given name Tibor , his male gender and his full civil registration
number are missing. He was begotten during the Easter weekend in 1958 and was born exactly at midnight,
December 24. This is further evidence that he was the one who in those days was crucified during Easter in
Jerusalem, Palestine. This is what happened when the Lion Tibor E was born in Linköping. At the same time, in the
Vatican, was the Lamb who was my father’s cousin’s child, a hybrid, ten years older, under the protection of Pope
John XXIII.

Pope John XXIII in his office. On his desk we see the ”Black Madonna”/Helen and her child the Lamb, i.e. the Lamb’s biological mother,
who then was my father’s cousin. The pope – diary – the Black Madonna.



The image depicts the woman, the Black Madonna visiting the pope, kneeling and kissing his right hand. In his left hand the pope holds a
family tree with two branches, connected to the Lamb.

You who read this may wonder if there is further evidence that this Black Madonna/Helen visited the pope a number
of times. Yes, there is further evidence, published, in fact, by the Vatican: Predictions from the diary of Pope John
XXXIII, a copy of parts of the complete diary which was handed out by certain groups in several churches in Metro,
Manila. The priest DeAngelo was 73 years old when he agreed to publish some diary notations made by the pope
between February, 1959 and April, 1963. The dusty diary, bound in leather and containing hand-written predictions
was found by one of the Vatican cleaners who sorted boxes in a small storage room. The jotted-down messages reveal
a scared and excited pope who had decided to hold his meetings with Christ/the Lamb and the Madonna in secrecy.
The pope writes that he met Christ/the Lamb for the first time on February 12, 1959, in his chamber. He was elected
pope on October 28, 1958, and as early as February 12, 1959, he met the ten-year-old Lamb.  DeAngelo said that the
pope met the Lamb regularly and also met the Madonna between 1959 and 1963 in his chamber.

Her first visit to the pope was on April 7, 1959. According to the diary she talks about an event which was to happen
four years later, connected to a world leader.
Her next visit to the pope was on August 17, 1959. The Madonna talks about the troubles in her native country, a a
change in the balance of power and about how much blood had been wasted. Her native country was Hungary. The
troubles continued after the 1956 revolt, between 1958 and 1959 around 300 innocent Hungarians were executed.
Their crime was to have been born Hungarians and to wish for a Hungary for Hungarians. On June 13, 1960, the
Madonna met the pope again and according to the diary the Madonna, among other issues, talks about what was to
happen between the countries after the demise of Communism and that many poor children would die.
On March 6, 1961, the Madonna met the pope again. According to the diary the Madonna seemed to tired and sad
from heartache. The pope writes: “My heart aches when I see her being so injured.” Among other issues, the
Madonna talked about the natural catastrophes in the 1990’s, such as earthquakes and floods. It is highly likely that
the communists constantly interrogated her between June13, 1960, and March 6, 1961. They even threatened her. She
had to travel from Budapest to Rome and they wanted to know what she and the pope talked about. The meeting with
the pope on September 23, 1961: According to the diary the Madonna talks about negative prospects which the pope
did not like to listen to. The following meeting was on May 19, 1962. According to the diary visitors from space
(aliens) will arrive and the Savior will appear in the sky. Many people will fear these strange creatures. On July 2,
1962, the Madonna says that this is her last visit. Among other things she says that towards the end of 1998, our
heavenly friends will arrive and share with us their extensive knowledge. Finally, on December 2000, a fantastic
miracle will occur in the skies of New York City. Millions will watch the sensational appearance of Messiah who will
announce the beginnings of a second paradise here on Earth. More info at Aries, Capricorn and the End of Time,
page 23. Note that the Black Madonna was the daughter of vitéz Kemény Simon, many times she heard Simon talking
about the future at home. Helen probably wrote down Simon’s prophecies.  She even added her own visions and she
told them, step by step, to the pope who, according to the diary, was terrified at first. More info at Ancient Persia and
its Secret, page 9 and at Nero, Fright and Poetry, pp 16-17.



The picture shows the statue of Pope John XXIII and behind him we see Jesus/the Lamb and his twelve disciples.  One of the
apostles was John, younger son of fisherman Zebedee. The picture shows that the pope was a reincarnation of John the Apostle.

Porta Pertusa. This picture is an expressive document on connections between different signs. At the top we see Pope
Nicholas V’s coat of arms which confirms that the 1958 conclave still elected the proper pope. More info at Aries, Capricorn
and the End of Time, pp 11-12. The royal tower at the center is a symbol of the Swedish monarchy (the royal family
Bernadotte), see also the Bernadotte coat of arms. To the right and left of the royal tower we see two lilies, one is a symbol of
the Lion in Sweden, the other lily symbolizes the Lamb Hungary/Rome. Below the tower, as a foundation, we see a crescent
shaped as an ‘M’. A similar crescent, in the form of water, can be seen at the Bernadotte coat of arms. To the right of the tower
is an eagle and below the eagle is a man with an open book. The man does not belong to the royal family, but to a very rich
family. He is symbolically dressed in priest-like garments. To the left of the tower is a statue of Stephen who points to the
Lamb with his right hand. Behind him is Árpád’s family tree, to which he does not belong.

A lot happened during Pope John XXIII’s pontificate. There was no terror, no threats or coercion. He remembered what his
predecessor Nicholas V left behind. His coat of arms is at the top, it is possible that the 1958 conclave discussed this at length
and elected him the new pope.

In 1389 Urban VI decided to celebrate Virgin Mary’s  visit and he did that at least seven times after around 570 years. Virgin
Mary/the Black Madonna visited him in person seven times during his last pontificate between 1959 and 1963.



Pope Paul VI and the Black Madonna. In the picture we see the Madonna playing the piano. Simon’s daughter Helen studied at a
college of music during one summer in her youth, she could play the piano. It can also mean that she played the piano when she
visited the pope.

A picture recollection of Pope Paul VI in the Rosario basilica, October 6, 1966, his program. The image depicts Jewess Maria in
Sweden, holding her boy child in her arms, at the center. We see the mother and child below the seal.  To the right of the seal is
the pope’s coat of arms and to the left we see cardinal coat of arms. In the upper field we see an open book illustrating the book in
Daniel 7:9-11 in which the worldly Davidian Messiah, the Lion, is killed. In the lower field we see the Vatican coat of arms. This
is clear evidence of the murder of the Jew Tibor E in Stockholm. He was condemned to death as early as in 1966. Daniel 9:26:
”And after the sixty-two weeks Messiah shall be cut off, but not for Himself”.

Cardinal coat of arms
Kardinalvapen

Kardinalvapen

  Paul VI, (1963–1978), Giovanni Battista Enrico Antonio Maria Montini
                                        264, 108 Flower of Flowers

Pope’s coat of arms

More info at
Aries, Capri-
corn and the
End of Time,
pp 4 (1-6) Kiss of Death

Kiss of Death



Gregory XVII, antipope 41 (1978-2005), Palmar de Troya, Spain

Clemente Domínguez y Gómez, born May 23, 1946, in Seville, deceased on March 22, 2005 in Palmar de Troya in Spain, was
a Spanish religious personality. He founded the Palmarian Catholic Church, a branch of the Roman Catholic Church in 1975. He
proclaimed himself Palmarian Catholic pope on August 6, 1978, assuming the name Gregory XVII . Officially, the Roman
Catholic Church regards him as an antipope and he was excommunicated in 1983. His successor was Peter II.

After the death of Paul VI, he proclaimed himself pope. His motivation behind this was, among other things, his story about his
encounter with Virgin Mary in 1968 in Utrera. She told him to found the church with himself as pope. He founded the
Carmelites of the Holy Face Order. If we analyze what he has said about Virgin Mary and his other activities, we will find
many interesting issues.

Carmelites of the Holy Face Order

Bleeding wounds on hands as well as on the body illustrate the crucifixion of Jesus, but Jesus/the Lamb was never on the cross.
Why did he use these symbols? – Jewess Maria, the Lion’s biological mother, was not in Spain in 1969. Neither was the Black
Madonna, biological mother of Jesus/the Lamb, in Spain in 1969 to meet him. We are left with one Mary, the mother of the Bull
God. She was probably the woman who visited Clemente Gómez in Utrera in Spain.

In pict. #1 we can clearly see three six-pointed Stars of David, one white
and two black ones. The white star is a symbol of the crucifixion of a
Jew, the son of Jewess Mary, Joseph Jr. We see the same pattern in pict.
#2. To the right of Mount Carmel we see another black, six-pointed Star
of David, a symbol of the Serpent/the Lamb/Jesus who secretly assumed
Jesus’ identity. In pict. #2 we can see the wriggling Serpent on the cross
and to the right of the cross we see ’M ’ in the form of two crescents
against a blue background. To the left of Mount Carmel, pict. #1, we see
the third Star of David, also black, a symbol of the secret Bull God Jesus
Christ, i.e. Antichrist. Pict. #2 depicts the same thing, against a red
background, to the left of the cross.

The basis is the six-pointed Star of David. 3x6 equals 18 and 18 is the
human number. In other words: my father T.K’s birthday on April 18. If
we combine three sixes, 666, we get the name of the Beast. Rev. 13:17-
18.

Picture 2Picture 1

6
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Gregory XVII, antipope 41 (1978-2005), Palmar de Troya, Clemente Domínguez y Gómez



We take a closer look at this papal throne of gold which is a uniquely large and expensive creation. Many rich sponsors joined
in at the beginning to create the exterior as well as the interior of the church in Palmar de Troya in such short period of time.
We see a six-pointed Star of David on the throne, a symbol of the Bull God, Jesus Christ, Mammon, Messiah of wealth. More
info at Foundation Stone, pp 32-70 and Aries, Capricorn and The End of Time, page 27.   There is one more interesting
issue: You cannot find a lion, a lamb or a serpent either on the inside or the outside of the church. Neither are there any kinds
of painting, statue or other symbols, at least in the pictures I have. The Roman Catholic Mother Church, the Dragon, never
acknowledged the church in Palmar de Troya. Paul the Apostle was the Bull God’s disciple, together with, among others,
Timothy, Titus and Silas. It is possible that these popes in the Palmar de Troya church are reincarnations of these disciples.

The crossed golden keys. One golden key is a symbol of the Lion, the other one a symbol of the Bull in this context. We clearly
see that the keys cross the path of the animals. In this case the Bull wants to take over the Lion’s part and call himself a Jew
despite the fact that he is not. It is utopian to believe that a third animal wants to be my father’s son and call himself Tibor E.
The Bull is far outside my family, he is at least 12 years older than Tibor E. The Bull must have human blood and be begotten by
my father, otherwise the issue is a biological utopia. The Bull has neither seen nor met my father, the same argument is valid for
Tibor E.

Rome Palmar de Troya

Finally we have the third animal which claims to be Tibor E, the son of Jewess Maria. If you are rich you believe that everything can be
bought, everything that is an obstacle for you. You can buy and bribe yourself through life. But there are things you cannot buy: eternal
life, human blood and be able to say ”I am human, not an animal.” That is not possible and time is too short for us to transform animal
blood into human blood. I have some clues indicating that the Swedish royal family and the Swedish church at any costs are trying to
introduce the Bull into my family. The royal family has totally crushed the Lamb and now the king believes that he, with power and
criminality, can arrange a place for the Bull in my family – crazy plans and ideas. Maybe they will make use of violence, terror and
cheating again.



The pope, the Black Madonna and Jasna Góra.

Jasna Góra

Then and now. Two parallel pictures, 1 och 2, reflecting
reality. Joseph Jr. and Tibor E were reincarnations of the
Jew king David. In those days Jesus was unknown and not
even born. Jesus/Izates II/the Lamb was Queen Helena’s
fifth child and was born 10-13 later than Joseph Jr., son of
Jewess Mary. Now it is the other way around, Jesus/the
Lamb was born ten years earlier than Tibor E. In pict. #1
we can see the pope pointing to the little baby boy in
connection with cover-up of his murder. At the same time
the pictures illustrates the fact that the Holy See interferes
with my and my father’s private lives and ruins it via the
royal family and the Swedish church.
Note that my family tree is not owned by any church or
religion, we have nothing to do with them. They are
dangerous animals and an animal is not human.My father, jack-of-all-trades Tibor

Kemény and his foster son Tibor E.
1962
Stockholm

Jack-of-all-trades, carpenter Joseph and
his foster son Joseph Jr.
Nazareth

2
2

1
2

The picture illustrates a quotation
from Daniel. It is obvious that the
pope and the Lamb/Jesus, who
looks like the Son of Man,
together hold the world and the
pope gives him power. Dan. 7:14.

 It is also obvious that Jesus/the
Lamb/the Serpent is not the Son of
Man, he only looks like him.

 John Paul II (1978–2005), Karol Józef Wojtyła
                     266, 110 From a Solar Eclipse



The picture shows the Lamb/Jesus, Christer R. who, above all, resembles his late maternal grandfather vitéz Kemény Simon. The picture is
from Pope John Paul II’s picture collections from the middle of the 1990’s.

vitéz Kemény Simon,
              Heathen

   Kemény Ilona/Helen
The two-faced Black Madonna

The Lamb/Jesus/ Christer R.

We can clearly see that the Christer R. resembles my paternal grandfather’s brother Simon, the children of my father’s
cousins. Christer R. has his mother’s blood group and does not belong to the same blood as Simon. Simon has severed
contacts with the Roman Catholic Church and with his daughter Helen and excluded her from his family. More info at
Obscure Magyar, pp 59-64. She had a double face and a dual nature.

Jewess Maria E. and her son Tibor E, Helen and her son  Christer R.  We see clearly that Tibor E. and Christer R. two
different persons, they do not resemble each other in any way and they are of different blood groups. They are also
two different personalities. Christer R. took over Tibor E’s identity and he has since then a foreign surname which has
nothing to do with Hungary and the family.

1978 1978



Kemény
   Family tree
        (Simplified)

Kemény Mihály
        (55+)
 Blood group ORh+

Kemény Lajos
        (45+)
 Blood group ORh+

Kemény, Tibor István
  1923-04-18 (40+)
      Blood group ORh+

Kemény, Szabolcs József
           Born 1949 (40+)
       Blood group ORh+

vitéz Kemény Simon
             (45+)
  Blood group ABRh+

 Kemény Ilona/Helen
             (55+)
    Blood group BRh-

 Christer R.
  Born 1948, (40+)
 Blood group BRh-

National Forensic
Toxicology Laboratory
(SRL) 1976-06-17

In connection with the
paternity issue, the laboratory
examined blood samples from
my father Tibor Kemény,
from Jewess Maria and also
from Christer R. with Tibor
E’s identity documents. The
report says: ”In particular, I
refer to the fact that the child
must have inherited the, in
the European, Caucasian po-
pulation, rare genes   EAP-C
and ADA2 from his father,
and Mr. Kemény has these
two rare genes.

Jewess Maria has the
following genes:”EAP BB and
ADA-1”, the same as Tibor E.
These rare genes are missing
in Jewess Maria’s as well as in
Tibor E’s blood. This report
from SRL solidly confirms
that Christer is Helen’s child.
Furthermore, the report
proofs that my family tree
have their origins in Asia,
Scythia, the Middle East and
Sumer.

Jewess Maria  E.
            (28+)
Blood group ABRh+
”EAP BB, ADA-1

 Tibor  E.   Born 1958
            (8+)
  Blood group ABRh+

In 1978, via a telephone conversation with Christer R., it
came out that he did not know what had happened. He
did not know about us, about the existence of my father.
Furthermore, he knew nothing about fatherhood or
alimony. He repeated that his mother Maria knew
everything. This can only mean that the clergy had lied to
him about Maria being his mother and that his father died
in Hungary. Since he took over Tibor E’s identity,
acquired a new first name and surname, foreign, he was
removed from my family. Christer’s biological parents,
my father’s cousins, died in the 1980’s. His priests have
fooled him completely. He is also an orphan according to
Nostradamus, he does not know his biological parents.
Note that the Bull does not resemble the Lamb/Christer
R..

X

The blood transformation
process in ancient Egypt
failed and the result is now
obvious. Jesus/the
Lamb/Christer R. fell
because he did not belong to
human blood.

More info at Omnipotent
Akhenaten, pp 23, 25, 26.

Bröder



The pope and the carnival. The picture shows Pope Benedict at a carnival in 2008. A carnival of reality. In the
picture we see the pope managing and balancing the Virgin/the Lamb as well as the Bull.

Carnival 2008

Benedict XVI, (2005–2013), Joseph Alois Ratzinger
                       267, 111 Glory of the Olive.



The diocese of Skara had a new bishop on August 26, 2012. Above is the bishop’s coat of arms, which is very interesting as is his
crosier. On the red field we can see a Labarum, Christogram, Constantine Cross, an open book in the form a ‘V’, a Victoria sign.
Motto: Give Jesus the Honor.
The coat of arms of the diocese of Skara is a six-pointed Star of David encircled by twelve Stars of David. This is the only
diocese, out of thirteen in Sweden, displaying a Star of David.
If we analyze this coat of arms, we get the impression of being in AD 337, the time of Constantine I. Then Labarum appeared for
the first time.

Constantine I and his coin from AD 337. We can see the original Labarum which stabs the Serpent. Constantine meant that
he was Christ, Jesus Christ or Mark Jesus Christ. The final goal of the Roman Catholic Church is thus to destroy the
Serpent/Lamb/Jesus. This is an expressive document from his days.

The bishop of Skara chose this Christogram, Constantine Cross, for his coat of arms. Since the Serpent/Lamb was and still is
the original Jesus, the goal is to destroy him. Constantine I, the Bull, also calls himself Christ which means that Christ fights
Christ to capture the Lion’s identity. On the coat of arms we also see an open book in the form of a ‘V’. Nostradamus calls
this Christ Antichrist. The Christogram can also be called Killer of Serpent/Jesus.

12 3



Ponte Milvio, where Constantine and Maxentius encountered each other in the battle of Milvian Bridge in 312. In his dream Constantine saw
a cross in the sky and heard the voice: ”In this sign you will conquer”, in Latin In hoc signo vinces.  Indeed, he defeated Maxentius, bu the
must also defeat the Dragon, the Roman Catholic Church at the end of time when the cross will bear the sign E, since the Jew Tibor’s
surname begins with the letter E. More info at Obscure Magyar, page 12 and Foundation Stone, page 45.

The Constantine I statue in Hamburg. He holds the cross in his hand, the cross which saw in heaven in a dream, he treads on a
virgin-like character (the Virgin/Lamb). On his treading leg we clearly see the head of a lion, a symbol of “the Lion of Judah”,
although he is a Bull. According to the Christogram this would mean a victory with the V sign over the Roman Catholic
Mother Church, the Dragon.  This means the end of Christianity, since the Roman Church was founded by the Serpent/Lamb
and the Bull. Their common mother church was given the name Dragon with origins in Sumer, Tiamat. The one crucified was
Jewess Mary’s son Joseph Jr., a reincarnation of, among others, David who had nothing to do with Christianity. The question
is: Which Jesus do the bishop of Skara and the Swedish church honor? Christogram and mottos coincide with, among others,
the Catholic Church in Palmar de Troya, Spain.

Å.B. was ordained bishop of the diocese of Skara on Sunday August 26. Arch Bishop Anders Wejryd said this in a speech to him:
”Open up!”
Open up, was the theme of Wejryd’s speech. It was both about being open to God and being open to what is going on in the surrounding
world.
”For you the mission is primarily to see what it is that obstructs and blocks and to highlight what may liberate and facilitate”, he said.
This speech was broadcast on web-TV across Sweden. The question is how many understood what the arch bishop meant in his speech to the
new bishop.



On the diocese of Skara’s website is a presentation of the new bishop. Since 2010 he had been chaplain to the King at
Slottskyrkan, i.e. to the royal family. Did the King recommend him to the diocese of Skara?

Pope Benedict XVI has appointed him Commander of the Order of St. Gregory the Great (honorary appointment for ecumenical
work). If we analyze the pope’s appointment, we find clever slants. ‘Ecumenical’ really means ’worldwide’ from Greek
oikomene and was created in the days of Constantine I at the First Council of Nicaea.

We can establish that ’ecumenical’ can be connected to the Christogram. I believe that Gregory the Great was a reincarnation of,
among others, Job the Prophet, James Izates II/Jesus eldest brother and his deputy and of Gregory VII and Pius X. Gregory was
also called the Consul of God. The Christogram is clear here, its goal is to kill the Serpent/Lamb/Jesus/Virgin who is a Jew
according to the bishop and the Swedish church. The bishop and the church assumed this honor from the pope without thinking
about the consequences. In Palestine it was suggested that Jesus was a Jew and that the Jews killed him. Now the Swedish church
is back at square one.

267, 111 Glory
      of the olive

The Diocese of Skara Part of the papal throne in Palmar de Troya

Mutual false Star
of David

The coat of arms of the diocese of Skara has a Star of David at the center. Twelve smaller Stars of David encircle it.
The original Jew who was crucified was the son of Jewess Mary, Joseph Jr., who was a reincarnation of, among
others, David. Joseph Jr. had five (5) disciples, he was number six (6) and completed the Star of David. Jesus/Izates II
Queen Helen’s son, the whole family had converted to Judaism and Jesus assumed the identity of the Jew Joseph Jr.
In that way, Jesus became  Jewish. More info at Tutankhamun, the Young Lion, page 13 and Omnipotent
Akhenaten, pp 13-23. It was Jesus who had twelve (12) disciples, Jesus was the 13th. This happened in Palestine.
From Palestine to Linköping/Stockholm. Jewess Maria’s son was Tibor E, born in Linköping and killed in 1971 by
the clergy in Stockholm. He was a reincarnation of, among others, David and Joseph Jr.  The Lamb/Jesus/Christer R.
who was born in Hungary was a child of my father’s cousin and took over the Jew Tibor E’s identity with the consent
of the royal family and the Swedish church. In this way, Jesus/Christer became a Jew again.  The Christogram is a
symbol of ”Antichrist” who wants to destroy Jesus/the Lamb/Virgin and replace it by the Bull God Christ. The motto
”Give Jesus the honor” is thus dedicated to the Bull God Jesus, i.e. Antichrist.   An arch bishop and a bishop should
know what a Christogram is, its origins and use in combination with an open book formed as a V sign. In this way,
the pope, the ”Glory of the Olive”  wanted to highlight that it was the Jews who killed the Jew Jesus/the Lamb in
Jerusalem. ”Now the serpent was more cunning than any beast of the field” Gen. 3:1. Now it is time for the Swedish
church to shut up shop for good. More info at Foundation Stone, pp 37-40 and others.

Christogram/Labarum Christogram/Labarum



Labarum/Christogram

The first Labarum/Christogram appeared in Rome at the foundation of the Roman Church. Simon Peter, who was the
elder brother of Jesus/Izates II, represented Jesus Christ, the Serpent/Lamb. Paul the Apostle represented Mark/Christ,
the Bull. ‘PX’ stands for Pontifex Maximus (‘greatest pontiff’), a high priest. At the beginning the concept ‘pope’ did
not exist, a PX, Pontifex Maximus, led the church in those days. During the first 1,000 years the majority of the popes
used ‘PX’ as a personal coat of arms. More info at Foundation Stone, pp 33-40. Constantine I developed PX into a
labarum to show that he was the Lord. Since the lamb calls himself Alfa&Omega, we find the symbol Alfa&Omega on
his Christogram. Within the Catholic Church the Christogram is used by bishops, arch bishops and cardinals with or
without the Alpha&Omega sign. This sign can be interpreted as either Christ or Antichrist.

We find the first Christogram in a catacomb from the time of the foundation of the Roman Church. One dove on each side
of the cross, shaped as the letter P. Within the Catholic Church, among others, the dove is a female symbol. The doves are
symbols of Christ and Antichrist, the Lamb and the Bull.

?

Honor to which Jesus??
The Lion which was cruci-
fied in the Christogram,
although the Lion had
nothing to do with Chris-
tianity. Yet the
Lamb/Serpent took over his
iden-tity.

The Lion David/Josef Jr., who
was crucified. After around
40 years, even the Bull wants
to assume Tibor E’s identity.



At the beginning of February, 2013 Swedish television broadcast a Swedish program, The Tree of Life, in a new version. We
immediately notice that the traditional, wriggling serpent and the apple are gone. The Tree of Life is shaped like a spiral galaxy,
i.e. the Milky Way.

But if we take a closer look at the top of the tree, we see a sitting character, Jesus Christ/Antichrist symbolized by a dove. The
dove is still a female symbol. As far as I understand, this dove is not the Virgin/Lamb, but the Bull in the shape of a dove. In this
way, the Swedish church tries to introduce the Bull to my family tree. How will this be done? By cheating, violence, terror as it
did earlier, during the 70’s? “See what it is that obstructs and blocks and to highlight what may liberate and facilitate.”

The tree of life contains 12 hanging, symbolic fruits. In this context ’fruits’ means six (6) first-born sons and six (6) first-born daughters. The
first-born sons carry the family tree. They all belong to the human blood group ORh+ which is connected to both micro- and macro cosmos.  –
Arch Bishop! It is the blood, the human blood, that obstructs and blocks. Now you might understand the test period of the blood
transformation time is gone, an animal can never replace Man. And church and religion have nothing to do with this family tree, the church must
respect that. Amen.

PARATE
VIAM
DOMINI

PARATE VIAM
DOMINIPrepare the Way

 of the Lord
PARATE VIAM

DOMINI

Prepare the Way of the Lord

Parate viam Domini
Prepare the Way of the Lord

Arch Bishop´s
coat of arms
Sweden/Church
of Sweden



Furthermore, the Swedish church has disclosed that it probably was the royal family, with the consent of the church who gave
the orders to kill the Lion, the Jew Tibor E, the worldly and Davidian Messiah, who was born in Linköping, Sweden, by
appointing a new bishop in the diocese of Skara. The little Jewish boy Tibor was completely unknown and at the beginning, only
authorities, the church and the royal family knew about his existence. The pope certainly has the main responsibility but here in
Sweden, the head of state, the notable horn, can do whatever he likes, but not the pope. The pope exercises great influence,
among other visa the king. Since Tibor E was a reincarnation of, among others, Tutankhamun, the curse also hits the Swedish
church and the court, i.e. the Bernadotte royal family. More info at Aries, Capricorn and the End of Time, pp 1-6.  Also at The
Secret of the Black Hole, What Happens in a Black Hole, Voyage Through the Black Hole, and Life and the Black Hole.

Just while I am about to finish the text The Fourth Pyramid Which Disappeared, Pope Benedict XVI, on February 11, 2013,
announces his abdication on February 28, 2013. I was certainly a bit surprised by his abrupt decision, but it was not
unexpected. Let me analyze his unwavering decision, also made by his predecessors: Pope Celestine V, December 13, 1294,
Pope Gregory XII, July 4, 1415. This decision was thus number three.

On February 11, 2013, Pope Benedict XVI announced his abdication on Thursday February 28, 2013, after an eight-year-long pontificate.
On February 11, 1929, the Lateran Treaty was signed by the Vatican, Pius XI’s government and Italy’s Mussolini. It was stated that the Vatican is a
free and independent mini state within a larger state. This papal decision was well thought-out and refers to the next and last papal election. After the
announcement the Vatican received a sign as a light from Heaven, that the Beast approaches the end that the dark church will be lit up, also according
to Nostradamus.– A storm hit the Vatican that night and strange things happened.

Benedict XVI, (2005–2013), Joseph Alois Ratzinger
                       267, 111 Glory of the Olive.
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    Gregory XII, (1406–1415), Angelo Correr
              207, 48. Sailor from a Black Bridge
Abdicated on July 4, 1415. Dead October 18, 1417
 A worried pope
           1415

Benedict XVI, (2005–2013), Joseph Alois Ratzinger
                       267, 111 Glory of the Olive.

Abdicated on February 28, 2013
                                  A worried pope
                                              2013

    Celestine V, (1294-1294),
   Pietro Angeleri  Di Murrone
194, 31. Elevated from a Hermitage
Abdicated on December 13, 1294

The first pope to
abdicate

December 13, 1294.
Dead on May 19, 1296

1

2

3

A worried pope, 1294

The pope says goodbye to the flock of sheep, February 27, 2013

The pope’s farewell speech to the flock



February 28, 2013, the pope’s abdication

On February 28, 2013, Pope Benedict XVI left Rome in a helicopter for Castel Gandolfo, where he abdicated at eight
o’clock in the evening.

Castel Gandolfo

Benedict XVI, (2005–2013), Joseph Alois Ratzinger
                       267, 111 Glory of the Olive.



Waiting for
the new and
last pope

Benedict XVI, (2005–2013), Joseph Alois Ratzinger
                       267, 111 Glory of the Olive.

268 112
Peter the
Roman

Petrus Romanus

Pope Benedict XVI, emeritus

Pope Bnedict XVI abdicated on February 28, 2013. What happened that day, for example in Stockholm, Sweden?
Exactly 27 years later the Swedish prime minister was shot dead. Before his death he visited Pope John Paul II in
Rome, the Vatican, where they had secret discussions for more than two hours behind locked doors. Nobody knows
for sure what they talked about, both of them took their secrets to their graves. I understand that the Swede got a
mission by the pope, which he refused to carry out. He also knew too much and this was the reason for his murder. I
remember the pope’s visit to Denmark and Sweden in 1989. The pope met, among others, the national leaders and the
courts in both capitals. There was a reason behind his visits to Copenhagen and Stockholm. I believe the Swedish
prime minister to be a reincarnation of Pontius Pilate, we often say that history repeats itself.

Symbol of the 8-pointed star Symbol of the 8-pointed star



Before I attend to the last papal election, ”Peter the Roman”, according to St. Malachy’s list, I want to put in some
important, basic facts about the latest election. Above: Cardinal Tarcisio Pietro Evasio Bertone, Rome.

Vacant
Camerlengo Tarcisio

Cardinal Bertone.
Conclave

2013
March 12-13

Conclave
2013

March 12-13

Enamel work from around 1000 (Musée des Beaux-Arts, Dijon, France) depicts the moment when Jesus/Izates II/the Lamb hands
over the key to the Universe to his eldest brother James, Peter.  Behind Jesus is his wife Symmacho from Characene. The key is a
symbol of the book which Thomas, biological son of carpenter Joseph, wrote about his father and the construction and existence
of Universe, the same book which was rewritten by Judas, Jesus’ elder brother, in Jesus’ favor.  Between James and Jesus we see a
symbolic family tree, Joseph’s family tree, where Joseph and his two children are depicted as symbols at the top of the tree.
Finally the book ended up in Jesus’ hand and before his ascension James got it, the most secret object on this planet.

In James’ Apocrypha we can read correspondence between James and, probably, Paul. James: ”Since you asked that I send you a
secret book which was revealed to me and Peter by the Lord, I could not turn you away or gainsay (?) you; but I have written it in
the Hebrew alphabet and sent it to you, and you alone. But since you are a minister of the salvation of the saints, endeavor
earnestly and take care not to rehearse this text to many - this that the Savior did not wish to tell to all of us, his twelve disciples.".
Paul heard about this secret book in the contemporary secret circles. Paul wanted the book at any costs, so he told James that Jesus
had revealed himself to him in Damascus. He was a servant of salvation and as such he could persuade James. Thereafter he
received the book from him, according to James’ document. More info at Omnipotent Akhenaten, page 26 and Aries, Capricorn
and the End of Time, page 7. When Paul had got the book and read it, he killed James and all of Jesus’ important disciples. More
info at Foundation Stone, page 37.

Paul in captivity in Rome during Emperor
Nero’s reign, around AD 64.

Paul on his way to the place of execution. Between Paul and
the executioner is a symbolic family tree, above.

Paul is taken to his execution. Detail from the
sarcophagus of the Roman prefect Junius
Bassus (died in 359) Joseph’s family tree, the
cosmic Tree of Life, is clearly visible. It was
Nero who issued the order to execute Paul.



Emperor Nero was a reincarnation of, among others, Jesus, Izates II, the Lamb, the Virgin and the Serpent. More info at Nero, Fright and
Poetry. Nero probably met Brother Simon Peter who was the first high priest of the Roman Church, in those days called a community, a House
of Prayer. From him Nero heard about devastating events in Palestine connected to Christianity. A new variant of Christianity was founded by
a man named Paul. He gave himself out as being a Benjaminite, a Jew and heathen. Benjaminites were not Jewish. Neither was he a heathen, he
was a so-called hit-man who murdered people by order and was paid handsomely. In his profession he gathered valuable contacts. Regarding
his conversion he claims that he one day met Jesus in Damascus. He did not meet the original Jesus/Lamb, because he lived in Rome and was
called NERO. Paul’s home and birth town was Tarsus. Tarsus, founded by the Bull God Alexander the Great, is a town in Cilicia in southern
Turkey, situated on a fertile plain between the Taurus Mountains north of the town and the Mediterranean coast some miles south, by the river
Cydnos (now Tarsus Çay). Paul was the new main apostle of the new Jesus Christ, as a Bull.  It took Nero around two years to get information
about the new Christianity. At the same time he ordered Paul’s arrest, Paul was also a Roman citizen. When he heard about a book and an
apostle called James, he understood that his creation, based on Gnosticism, was shattered and that James had made a terrible mistake. That was
the reason why Nero persecuted Jews, Christians and heathens, he was strongly against the new Christianity, later on developed by the
infamous, falsified gospels. In that way, the new Christ became Antichrist. Paul was a reincarnation of, among others, Aaron.

Damascus: Paul’s
conversion to Christianity.

When Nero heard Paul’s story about a secret book connected to James, he was furious and ordered the execution of Paul.

Bab Kisan (Gate Kisan) in Damascus, where Paul was several times during his missionary trips. On the wall is a Christogram for
Antichrist or for the Bull Christ, one of the oldest Christograms.

San Paolo fuori le Mura, Basilica of Saint Paul. Paul the Apostle was buried
here and a memorial after him was built. At the center we see the Lamb
surrounded by lots of bulls and oxen. In this place Constantine I built the first
basilica in 386 as a memorial to Paul the Apostle.



In an old script about Paul we see him with this Bull God, Christ the Bull. In the gospels the Bull God is called ‘Mammon, Messiah of
Money and Wealth. The Bull God had six disciples: Paul, Barnabas, Titus, Timothy, Silas, Linus.

Detail from the sarcophagus of the Roman prefect Junius Bassus (dead 359), from Daniel’s time in Babylonia in connection with
Daniel’s father’s paternity issue between the Lion of Babylon and the Lamb/Serpent God from Israel. The paternity issue in
Babylon is a reflection of the paternity issue in Stockholm, almost a copy. To the left of Daniel is the Lion of Babylon who was
Daniel’s father’s foster son and to the right of Daniel is the false Lion, the Serpent God/Lamb. More info at Aries, Capricorn
and the End of Time, pp 1-7.

                       Job
    Job 41:1-25 and Job 40:1-19
         before the exodus from Egypt
                  Approximate

Gregory I
Gregory the Great

AD 590-604

In the Gnostic scriptures and the Hebrew Gospel we can read that Jesus’ eldest brother James became his deputy. He was a man
of outstanding virtue. James the Just received the keys to the construction of Universe. Eventually he became the last pope, Peter
the Roman, according to Saint Malachy’s list of prophecies. He was a reincarnation of, among others, Job, Gregory the Great,
Gregory VII and Pius X. Pius X saw himself in a dream, fleeing from the Vatican with the name Pius, Pius XIII. The last pope
would thus be named Pius XIII and be a reincarnation of, among others, Gregory I.

James bar Monobaz
James Peter

Around AD 25-40

St. Pius X, (1903–1914)
  259, 103 Burning Fire



     Back to the Sistine Chapel, conclave on March 12-13, 2013

Benedict XVI, (2005–2013), Joseph Alois Ratzinger
                       267, 111 Glory of the Olive.

Conclave
2005

April18-19

We take a quick look back, to the conclave of 2005, April 18-19. Cardinal Ratzinger was then elected new pope, on
April 19, the date Queen Christina died. The Pope received Saint Malachy’s motto Glory of the Olive.  This pope has
really highlighted the Lamb and reflects the time in Palestine when the carpenter and jack-of-all-trades Joseph was at
the center of events, in a paternity role. Joseph’s birthday was on April 18 .  The same date as for my father Tibor
Kemény, he was a reincarnation of Joseph the carpenter. The human number 18 is described in Rev. 13:17-18. The
Beast’s number is 666.  The Lion (6) + the Lamb(6) + the Bull (6). = 18. More info at Foundation Stone, page 70.
This is further evidence that Man is the basis of Nature, not God.

Sistine Chapel. At the center we see the Lamb and doomsday. At the top of the wall is Daniel, a painting by Michelangelo who
painted the whole chapel in 1511. The last papal election took place in this chapel. The election started on March 12 and was
finished by the 13th with the new and last pope.

115 cardinals were in the chapel to elect the new and last pope.

Vacant
Camerlengo Eduardo  Kardinal

Somalo. (1993-2007)



115 cardinals were in the chapel to elect the new and last pope.

On March 13, around six o’clock in the evening, the white smoke announced the election of a new pope, also the last pope.
The world had expected one of the favorites, but who is he?

At 7 past 7 the balcony window opened and Cardinal Jean-Louis Tauran read the standard message for the last time: Habemus
Papam. The 268th, according St. Malachy the 112th and last, pope had been elected. His sad looks and almost tearful voice
confirmed that Christianity and the mother Church, the Dragon, had lost and that Attila’s promised cross for Pope Leo I, in the
shape of a boomerang, finally, had hit the Church. More info at Obscure Magyar, page 29.



The new pope, Cardinal Jorge Mario Bergoglio, from Buenos Aires,
Argentina, chose the papal name Francis I. This pope appeared before
the surprised world dressed in white. When I heard and saw the new
pope my first spontaneous reaction was: ”I’ll be damned.” What will
happen now? I knew that the election of a new pope would be a
surprise, but I did not know he would be from Argentina. The chosen
papal name was not Pius XIII, he took his name from Francis of Assisi.
Now the election of the last pope became interesting. I believe that the
original rock took part in the election as one of the 115 cardinals. At the
same time, the conclave is authorized to choose a pope among the 115
cardinals, and it is the elected cardinal that counts.



If we analyze the conclave of March 12-13, 2013, we discover strange things. Gregory I, who died on March 12, 604,
was a reincarnation of, among others, Job, Jesus’ elder brother James, and Pius X.  This Job/James was a virtual rock
– Peter. Thus: the conclave started the election of the last pope on the day of Gregory I’ death. Gregory I’s pontificate
lasted from September 3, 590, to March 12, 604. September 3 is my birthday and I am my father’s only-begotten
son. March 13 coincides with my father’s paternity issue, a secret date which strengthens the handling of and final
goal connected to it and also who knew about it. The late prime minister also knew about this secret date, after the
warnings from Pope Nicholas V. Pope Francis I was inaugurated on March 19, 2013, the namesday of the carpenter
and jack-of-all-trades Joseph. Furthermore, my first names are Szabolcs Jòzsef. (I can also mention that exactly 74
years earlier, on March 12, 1939, Pius XII was crowned as Gustav Hitler’s last pope).

The rich man and the poor Lazarus, Jerusalem, Palestine

Saint Francis of Assisi, 1182-1226
If we look back to Palestine in the days of Jesus, the Lamb, we meet a very poor man, Lazarus, in Jerusalem.  He was deeply
religious and led a simple life. Despite being a poor beggar he helped other poor people. The picture of him, above, is preserved.
A similar man, called Francis, lived in Assisi, in Italy. The world knows about his life and work. He also had a simple life, helped
the poor and was very religious, among other activities he talked with animals and birds. It was Francis who got the idea to have a
Christmas crib in the church. The first time he brought a living ox into the church. He wanted to remind the flock of sheep about
the humble origins of the Christian faith. His emblems were, for example, a skull and a lamb. We can interpret the skull in
different ways, for example a symbol of Death and the Kingdom of Death, Rev. 1:17-18. Francis is the pope’s example, he leads a
simple life with the papal name Francis. According to media he was a unique arch bishop and cardinal, unique for his way of life.
He helped the vulnerable and poor in his native country and seemed to be fairly human. He got the nickname ‘poor people’s
cardinal”. Only he knows his deepest thoughts. If I am right: this pope was never a pope in an earlier life. But if he was, he is a
reincarnation of  Pope Linus. ‘Peter’ means ‘rock.’ He certainly is a rock and his election is very interesting. But he is responsible
for the Church’s 2000 years of bloody and cruel historical activities. Now he wants a poor church, like Pope John Paul I. In my
family tree there are poor, simple but honest human beings possessing vast knowledge. The majority of the world’s population are
poor and simple and remember what Jesus/the Lamb said to Mark the Bull:  “For it is easier for a camel to go through the eye of a
needle than for a rich man to enter the kingdom of God.” This election of the pope was rather expedient, they knew in advance
who was to be the last pope. At the presentation on March 13, the Pope said: “You know it was the duty of the Conclave to give
Rome a bishop. It seems that my brother Cardinals have gone to the ends of the earth to get one.” The pope’s motto is: Miserando
atque eligendo, Pitiable but chosen. (In colloquial English, approx. ’elected in a catastrophic situation).



The election of the pope had one more message: white, white light. Francis I is the first pope to appear completely
dressed in white at the presentation. What is most startling it the white, new Vatican coat of arms, the flag with red
borders where each side symbolizes an eight-pointed orange star. When Pope John Paul II was elected pope, he had a
red papal coat of arms against a white background at the presentation. Pope Benedict XVI had the previous coat of
arms against a white background. The color white appears in Revelation as the symbolic color of Man, depicting,
among other things, that Man, Cosmic Adam, is clean and innocent in this context.  Rev. 6:2. The time, 7 past 7 in the
evening is also a sign in Revelation. Seven congregations, seven stars, the seven-branched candlestick, seven hills.
More info at Coats of Arms, page 9. Alfa & Omega, symbol of the Lamb and the last pope, is also clearly visible on
the pope’s white clothing above. The red color in Revelation is blood, the activities of the Lamb and the Beast are
thus bloody. The cardinals’ red color is a symbol of blood in the Church, in religion. The skull in Saint Francis’ hands
is a symbol of death, among other things, Rev. 1:17-18, the keys of Hades and of Death. It seems to be the case that
the Mother Church/the Dragon is about to leave the Gospel in favor of Revelation which is mostly about the Lamb,
the Bull and the Lamb’s battle against the Bull.

I have analyzed all of the 115 cardinal coats of arms. The coats of arms confirm the cardinals’ positions within the church. The
majority of the cardinals belong to the Lamb, some belong to the Bull, certain cardinals balance between the two. A few support
the Lion. Pope Francis I was inaugurated on March 19, 2013. March 19 is the carpenter and jack-of-all-trades Joseph’s
namesday. There is only one cardinal coat of arms that is consistent with my father’s paternity issue. The pope’s coat of arms is
very interesting, the symbols are extensive and ambiguous. Let me have a closer look at this.

  Inauguration
March 19, 2013

            Francis I
268 112, Peter the Roman

           Francis I
268 112, Peter the Roman

 Rev. 6:2



                The Carmelites’ emblem
1 The Lion of Judah, Joseph Jr, the worldly and
Davidian Messiah, who was crucified.

2 The Lamb, The Serpent, Izates II/Jesus, the
Levite and priestly Messiah of the Melchizedek
church order; assumed the identity of the Jew
Joseph Jr., wriggling on the cross.

3 The Bull, Mark, Mammon, the third
Messiah, Messiah of money and wealth.
Society of Jesus; sanctuary: Mother Church II,
Jesus’ Church in Rome. Has removed the Lamb
and replaces the Lion. He also calls himself
Jesus.

1

2 3

4  IHS written backwards, obscure background

5  IHS under the seal

4

5

Cluster of grapes
1 Jewess Mary’s son Joseph Jr. was married to Jewess Mary
of Magdala; lived in Cana, wine-grower, offered wine at his
wedding. More info at Omnipotent Akhenaten, page 16,
Tutankhamun, the Young Lion, page 9.

2 The Bull God Mark drank wine. Alcohol was his favorite
drink. More info at Hanging Gardens of Babylon, page 6.

The 5-pointed is a symbol of, among other things,
planet Venus. The Lamb/Jesus says in Revelation
that is Venus, the Morning Star.

Who was, really, Saint Ignatius of Loyola, Spain?

Íñigo López Oñaz y, Loiolakoa, in Basque,
Ignacio de Loyola, Loyola, in Spanish
Basque Country, Spain

Three different birthdays are on record:
1 October 23, 1491. Zodiac sign Scorpion.

2 May 31, 1491. Zodiac sign Gemini.

3 December 24, 1491. Zodiac sign Capricorn.

Ignatius was born into a very rich Basque family at the Loyola Castle. He was of noble birth and led the wild life of a bachelor:
festivities, women, weapons, etc. He started his career as an officer. When he lay wounded after a battle in 1521 he read about
Jesus and the lives of the saints and decided to dedicate his life to serving Jesus. Serving Jesus is one thing, but which Jesus to
serve is another. If you wish to deal with religion at all, you should be able to keep God/the Lamb/Serpent and the
Lord/Bull/Mammon/Satan apart. He traveled to Jerusalem to study and lived there as a vegetarian. Then much happened, mostly
studies. On August 15, 1534, he founded the Society of Jesus in Paris together with six friends: François Xavier, Pierre Favre,
Diego Laínez, Simon Rodrigues, Nicolas Bobadilla and Alfonso Salmerón. Thus, his group consisted of six persons, he was the
seventh (like the Jew Joseph Jr’s group, the difference was that Joseph Jr. was number six, a symbol of David). The activities in
the Society of Jesus were so secret that the organization was out under the seal, picture 5 above, with a plain text: IHS. It later
became a Christogram. The Holy See probably had to break the seal later on after the death of all founders. Before that they had to
read the message backwards, picture 4 and 5 above. On June 24, 1537, Ignatius and the other members of the group were ordained
in Paris. In 1537 they decided to leave Paris and meet again in Venice, Italy. From Venice they were supposed to travel together to
Jerusalem. Generally we write them all together, as one person, but the Lamb/Serpent is called God and the Bull is called Lord,
like Baal.

Familjevapen



Ignatius was on his way to Rome and close to his destination he took a small break in an old dilapidated church called
La Storta. There he had another vision, his destination was not Jerusalem, but Rome. In Rome, in 1538, Pope Paul III
acknowledged the Society of Jesus and the same year, on Christmas Eve, he carried out his first mass in Santa Maria
Maggiore Basilica, at the crib . He died on July 31, 1556, and his last resting place was the Mother Church, Church
of the Gesù in Rome. Who was this mysterious founder of the Society of Jesus who was canonized on March 12 by
Pope Gregory XV? His canonization on March 12 coincides with Gregory I’s day of death and the start of the 2013
conclave.

Ignatius as a priest in Rome Ignatius as the head of a lion
   Ignatius and Gregory the Great
Gregory belonged to the Lamb’s clergy

When analyzing the pope’s coat of arms and that of the Society of Jesus, we see that the yellow sun’s
background is blue. The sun is a male symbol of the Lion (the Lion of Judah, the Jew Joseph Jr., who
was crucified with the three nails we can see below the Christogram IHS). One suggested date of birth
is December 24, his first mass in Santa Maria Maggiore Basilica at the crib  was also during
Christmas and his final resting place was the Mother Church Il Gesù in Rome. To the surrounding
world he gave himself out as being a Lion, fitting in with the sun. These strong, heavy facts give me a
fairly exact picture of Ignatius. He was one of the three Messiah characters and he is a perfect fit for
the Bull activities, ‘Antichrist’, also according to Nostradamus.  His most important enemy was and is
the Lamb/Serpent. There was something similar in the seal above. The Society of Jesus was and is not
popular within the Catholic Church. Spain and Argentina are, among others, the Bull’s native
countries. That does not go well together with the Order of Saint Francis.

Helen/Black Madonna

       Helen and her son
      Izates II, Jesus, Virgin

Greek Mary

      Rich parents,
Known all over the world

Judinnan Maria då och nu och hennes son, Josef jr och Tibor E.

John, Mark

6

6

        666
The number of the Mother
Church, the Dragon

6

Blood group

Blood group

        666
The number of the Mother
Church, the Dragon



At the 2005 conclave it was suggested that when Cardinal Joseph Alois Ratzinger (Benedict XVI) was elected pope, he
defeated his worst rival, Cardinal Jorge Mario Bergoglio (Francis I). We know that Pope Benedict XVI brought forward the
Lamb. The Lamb’s rival and competitor is the Bull, so Pope Francis should bring forward the Bull.

If we take a closer look at the original emblem of the Society of Jesus, pict 1 and pict 2, we find the original message.  Pict 1
shows the letters IHS. Below HIS we see two six-pointed Stars of David, between the stars is a crescent. Above the cross is an
eight-pointed star. The eight-pointed star is in a line with the crescent. One Star of David is the original Lion, a symbol of the
Sun. The other Star of David is the Bull, the false Jew.  At the center, between the two stars is the Lamb/Serpent. Pict 2
illustrates the same thing, with one difference. Above the original Star of David is the wriggling Serpent. The message is that the
Serpent/Lamb took over the Lion’s identity after its funeral and the Bull took over the Lamb/Serpent’s identity after the Lion’s
ascension. Thus, the Bull, the richest animal on this planet, is Jesus Christ, a Lion symbolizing the Sun, it was he who was
crucified. This is Pope Francis I’s main message.

1

2

Tutankhamun’s cross The cross where the Jew Joseph Jr. was
crucified, in the shape of a symbolic anchor

And the Serpent, wriggling on the cross.

If we take a closer look at Tutankhamun’s cross, pict 3, it looks a bit strange. Above the cross is a circle shape which may
symbolize the human blood 0. In the Old Kingdom between Dynasty 0 and 4 there was a continuous research process aiming at
transforming animal blood to human blood, see the first pages. When they had come so far that such a result might have been
possible, everything was destroyed through, among other things, sabotage, murder and destruction and the research halted. If you
want to be the Son of Man, you must inherit the human blood. As far as I understand this is the symbolic meaning of
Tutankhamun’s cross. The issue was the same in Palestine, Tutankhamun was reincarnated in, among others, David, who in turn
was reincarnated in Jewess Mary’s son Joseph Jr., who was crucified Then everybody believed that he was the carpenter
Joseph’s biological son, but he was not.  In those days they did not talk about blood groups, they were of the opinion that it was
possible to replace each other if they had a lot of money and adequate contacts. They knew that the carpenter and jack-of-all-
trades was human and had human blood. Queen Helena was Julius Caesar’s daughter and it was believed that all her children
were of human blood, since she was a relative of Joseph via her father Caesar. The cross in pict 4 is a symbol of a ring in which
the Serpent wriggles. It can also be a symbol of human blood. The cross looks like an anchor with the Lamb/Serpent/virgin to
the right and Bull to the left. – Despite being rewritten, the gospels fairly clearly depict the differences between the Messiah
characters, they do not resemble each other. After the crucifixion several Messiah characters appeared, characters who in the
gospels are put together into only one, named Jesus Christ.
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ABRh+

Kemény Tibor,
Designer, jack-
of-all-trades
ORh+

Kemény, Szabocs József
Kemény Tibor’s only-begotten
son   ORh+

Jewess
E. Maria
ABRh+

              E. Tibor
Maria’s only-begotten son,
foster son of K.T’s ABRh+

    Helena/Ilona
Black Madonna
 Cousin of K.T’s
BRh-

R. Christer
One of Helena’s sons BRh-

Ex-second cousin of K.Sz.J’s

vitéz Kemény Simon ABRh+
Father of Helena/Ilona

 The Bull Jesus Christ
  One of richest on Earth
  ARh-

In the wide world, the opinion is that Jesus Christ is of human blood. That is not the case. There is
nothing more important than human blood when it comes to Man and eternal life. That was known
in the Old Kingdom in Egypt. The complete Messiah mission with Man and the creation of the
new world fall down because of the blood of religion and Church. This is the result of the
violence, destruction, murder, revenge and competition about global power which took place in
the Old Kingdom in Egypt. This pattern continues today.

The taking over of the Lamb’s/Jesus’ forged identity documents in connection with my father’s paternity issue during the
1970’s does not take the Bull closer to his final goal. Violence, terror and lies glued to my good father are good enough.
Simon, who was my paternal grandfather’s younger brother and lived in parallel with him, had a simple life together with his
family. The Lamb/Jesus had a similar background, a simple family where knowledge was important than money and
fortunes. The Bull was born into a very rich family where money and power were more important than the human being and
Life. The Lamb is the total opposite of the Bull.
Daniel and Revelation write about the Lamb who resembles  Son of Man. The Lamb, now at the End of Time, resembles his
maternal grandfather Simon, my father Tibor, and me.  The Lamb was supposed to be like the Lion Tibor E, not like us. But
the Bull does not even look like the Lamb. It does not help that the Swedish church starts to send messages that Jesus was
and is a Jew. The Bull was not and is not a Jew now. The opposite of wealth is poverty and the pope highlights poverty in
order to conceal Jesus Christ/Antichrist’s real wealth and origin.

Identity change
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Francis I, (2013-), Jorge Mario Bergoglio
                 268, 112 Peter the Roman.

Motto: "Pitiable but chosen"Motto: ”Miserando atque eligendo”

112112

More info at
Obscure Magyar. pp 57-64
                    and
Aries, Capricorn and the End of
Time, pp 1-7.

Foundation Stone, pp 68-70

Upp. 1:7
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A worried pope



Royal Order of the Seraphim: Founded in
1748 by King Fredrick I of sweden

The Society of Jesus in the
pope’s coat of arms

Pict 1 illustrates the Royal Order of the Seraphim and pict 2 the Society of Jesus in the papal coat of arms. If we analyze the Order of the
Seraphim we can see the following symbols: It takes its symbols from the Society of Jesus. The escutcheon is placed into an eight-pointed
star shaped as four crescents symbolizing the Lamb. On the escutcheon is the Christogram HIS and the cross, a symbol of the Bull. The
double cross is a symbol of both the Lamb and the Bull. Since the Notable Horn, the head of state/King/Ox with his featherbrain destroyed
my father’s paternity issue in the 1970’s using all brutal and illegal means, he did not only hurt my family, he also ruined the positions of the
Lamb and the Bull. In other words: He finished Christianity for good. Pope Nicholas V warned his successors about this. There is one more
thing to say about Pope Nicholas V, something I have not revealed so far.

At the link Autobiography, page 4, I tell the story about a priest in the congregation where I was a choir boy until 1964.  I will call this priest
‘PP’. This priest told me the following story about himself: He grew up in a poor environment and lost his father early in life. To be able to
cope with life he and some friends chose the clerical road and in that way he could financially support, among others, his mother. He had
many books, read a lot and acquired knowledge about being human.  During hard times he helped the poor, simple people, including Jews
and Romani people. He was very popular and loved by people. He mentioned that he personally knew my family and relatives on both my
father’s and my mother’s side. He knew my father, my paternal grandfather and grandmother, her family and also Simon and all his sons and
daughters. He knew Simon’s best friends the artist Éber Sándor, the priest Gondan Felician, and the priest who married my father and mother
in 1948. He himself married my mother’s eldest sister. He also knew my mother, her mother and father and the whole family.

Around and close to Baja there were and still are small communities and villages with small churches. One of the churches is St. István. In
the small, old church, PP held masses on weekdays. I joined him as a choir boy several times, he did not want anyone else when he delivered
masses outside Baja. We twice visited a larger church in a nearby village, the second time for a wedding. We cycled there and back again. He
loved women, he was quiet and unobtrusive and really listened when someone said something to him. He had a certain charisma, you could
feel the honesty, he was the only priest I had confidence in. During our last meeting he told me that he regretted having chosen the clergy, but
fate wanted that. He was the first person who told me about my future, what I would do and repeatedly told me to stay with my father. It was
actually he who symbolically pointed out my long, hard road, filled with gigantic obstacles. Now the future, as well as he in my memory, is
here. In retrospect I can establish that this human, highly intelligent priest was a reincarnation of, among others, Pope Nicholas V. As a
reward for his human and just pontificate, PP was allowed to approach my family tree and meet and socialize with the key persons. He
somewhat resembled Pope Nicholas V, but they had a very strong common foundation: they could both look into the future.

A short addition about PP. When my paternal grandfather passed away in 1962, my grandmother had organized the funeral with three priests
and a funeral mass. I took part as a choir boy, one priest was PP. When the funeral was over, I asked my grandmother: ”Gran, you have
overdone it, you knew that grandfather was not religious, he has always avoided the church.” Her answer was that grandfather was a sinner
and had sinned a lot.  This was my answer: “No, no, Gran, my grandfather was not a sinner, he was an honest, capable and faultless human
being, a good father. Making mistakes in life is no sin, is it?” Grandmother only looked at me and said nothing. Later I got to know, in church
and at the parish office where priests used to work, that all three priests took part in the mass because the personally knew my grandfather and
one of them said: ”I was not at Simon’s funeral, but I didn’t want to miss Lajo’s burial.” I never found out who of priests who said this, two
of them also knew Simon. On the wall behind the chair hung Simon’s painting of the crucifixion of Messiah in 1935, the worldly and
Davidian Messiah, who was crucified in Jerusalem. This much about the priest PP.
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Nicholas V,
From the meanness

of Luna



A discarded soldier
on the throne

A closer analysis of the Royal Order of the Seraphim

Fredrick I, 1720-1751 Benedict XIV, (1740–1758),
Prospero Lorenzo Lambertini
      249 93 Country Animal
     Pontificate: 18 years
         1740 -1758 = 18Born: April 18 , 1676

in Kassel, Germany

                  The Organization of the Seraphim Order

The basis of the Order of the Seraphim is the ’IHS’ of the Society of
Jesus. Jesus Christ is the Savior of Man, a Christogram, symbol of the
Bull, Antichrist. The Society of Jesus was founded by the Catholic, Saint
Ignatius of Loyola in 1534 and was approved of by Pope Paul III in 1538
in Rome. Basically, the Society of Jesus is Catholic property and
constitutes the basis of the Seraphim Order.  The double cross is here a
symbol of the Lamb and the Bull. The Sun, the Lion of Judah, is gone.

The 8-pointed
star is the Lamb’s
symbol

The Sun is the
Lion’s symbol. The
Lion of Judah

IHS the
Christogram of the
Society of Jesus.
Symbol of
Antichrist, the
Bull, who took
over the Sun as a
symbol.

IHS the
Christogram of the
Society of Jesus.
Symbol of
Antichrist, the
Bull, who took
over the Sun as a
symbol.

Papal coat of arms
 Benedict XIVThe pope’s coat of arms

Benedictus XIV



The Royal order of the Seraphim is a Swedish royal order of nobility which was established on February 23, 1748, after an
initiative of the parliament, by King Fredrick I. The order is Sweden’s highest distinction. Since the Seraphim Order is based on
the Christogram of the Society of Jesus with three nails, three nails as s symbol of the crucifixion of the Lion, King Fredrick
probably had permission from Pope Benedict XIV. This order is connected to religion, a Christian order which is there to remind
us about Messiah or Antichrist, since neither the Lamb nor the Bull was crucified. Accordingly, the Royal Order of the Seraphim
is strongly connected to religion. It can also be called an order of salvation.

The story of King Fredrick I is rather long, but it can be simplified like this: After only a few years Fredrick had wasted the
personal reputation he enjoyed at his ascension. It was partly due to the deplorable result of the Peace of Nystad in 1721. The
bitterness was mixed with suspicions that Fredrick, in his negotiations with the tsar, was more interested in his own gain than in
Sweden’s interests when he, in the peace treaty, handed Livonia, Estonia, Ingria and part of Karelia over to the Russians. August
Strindberg called him ”Sweden’s worst ruler who couldn’t speak Swedish and actually was a German landgrave.” He was also a
religious character and had connections within the Holy See.

When Pope Paul VI was crowned on June 30, 1963, he had
the Christogram of the Society of Jesus on his white glove. It
was he who ordered the murder of the Lion Tibor E in
connection with my father’s paternity issue. It was probably
the Bernadotte royal family who carried out the pope’s death
sentence in 1971. Fredrick I’s birthday, April 18, and the 18-
year long pontificate of Benedict XIV symbolically coincide
with my father’s paternity issue. We know the outcome:
Christianity falls to pieces because of the king’s criminal
handling of the matter. The pope has the main responsibility
and has the right to confront the king.

More info at Aries, Capricorn
and the End of Time, pp 1-6.

More info at Aries, Capricorn
and the End of Time, pp 1-6.

This is the ob-
scure activity of
King Carl Gustaf
XVI, in the form
of the Seraphim
Order

Seraphs =
Celestial,
obscure beings
of uncertain
making.
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Dark/black pope, 113
         Doomsday

Rev. 1:17-18. Death and the
keys to Kingdom of Death

Rev. 6:8

The internet has the following information about the very last pope or high priest:
”Nostradamus says nothing about the last and mythical ”black pope”, 113. Neither does St Malachy (except for the arrival of
the terrible Judge who will condemn). But there is a myth about a room in the Vatican where all popes are described and the
last one, #113, is covered up. - St. Malachy calls him ”dreadful/terrible judge”.
 Rev. 14. 14:20. – The Lamb who removes the sins of the world. Pope Alfa&Omega, 113.

113113

666

St Francis had the ability to look into the future and he wrote this about the last pope:

Saint Francis of Assisi (1226 A.D.)

Prophecy of St. Francis of Assisi (d. 1226): “There will be an uncanonically elected Pope who will cause a
great schism, there will be diverse thoughts preached which will cause many, even those in the different orders to
doubt, yea, even agree with those heretics which will cause my Order to divide, then there will be such universal
dissensions and persecutions that if those days were not shortened even the elect would be lost.” Rev. Culleton, The
Reign of Antichrist, Tan Books, 1974, p. 130: “Some believe this prophecy referred to the controversy surrounding
the election of Pope John XXIII and Cardinal Siri. But it could refer to the next and last pope (Peter the Roman).
The last pope may just cut Catholics loose from unity and the papacy, causing total disruption and confusion.

Pope Francis combined the name Francis and the Society of Jesus which gives the world a double message, a
combination of poverty and wealth. He is the last pope who is referred to as ”Peter the Roman”.

     Celestinw II, (1143–1144), Guido da Castello
            167, 1. From a Castle of the Tiber

Francis I, (2013-), Jorge Mario Bergoglio
                 268, 112 Peter the Roman.
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112
    The last pope

Pope
Francis I
Papal brother
”Peter the Roman”

Pope
Benedict XVI,
emeritus
Papal brother
”Glory of the Olive.”

Celestine II
                      Den förste

Number 1

Rev. 1:17-18. Death and the
keys to Kingdom of Death

Rev. 6:8
Pope Alfa&Omega,

Dreadful/terrible judge, 113
Pope Alfa&Omega,

Dreadful/terrible judge, 113

113 113



The Arch Bishop of Ireland Malachy’s list from Pope Sixtus V, 1585-1590, to 2013 -

Rev. 12, The Woman and the Dragon. The text is a bit hard to interpret and confused, if you are not at the center of events you
understand nothing. The Dragon is the Mother Church, the Roman Catholic Church, a female symbol. The Serpent is neither man
nor woman, a virgin, but the Serpent, as a male character, is most important. The Serpent and the Bull are both members of the
Mother Church the Dragon. Satan is a male symbol, the Bull, Mammon. The woman in this context is Jewess Maria who gave
birth to her baby boy in Linköping in 1958. This is obvious in Rev. 12:5. But her son was murdered and this coincides with my
father’s paternity issue (ruling all people with an iron rod means Doomsday).

Rev.12

111

110
109

108
107

112



There is a very interesting part of the same chapter in Revelation, Rev. 12:13. ”Now when the dragon saw that he had
been cast to the earth, he persecuted the woman who gave birth to the male Child”.  I believe this text refers to the last
conclave on March 12/13 2013 and the last papal election of “Peter the Roman”. The text concludes: “And the dragon
was enraged with the woman, and he went to make war with the rest of her offspring, who keep the commandments of
God and have the testimony of Jesus Christ.” It is strange, is it not, that the very Vatican/Dragon also carries the
testimony of Jesus.

For more than 10 years there have been wars on Earth, civil wars become more and more common and other nations
are involved. For Hungary it is important to  sever contacts with the Holy See and abandon Christianity since
Hungary never acknowledged it.

The new head of state took the oath on November 4, 1944.
Center: the Holy Crown of Saint Stephen

The Crown of Saint Stephen
The Crow of Saint Stephen

The Jobbik Party in Hungary sees the old Arrow Cross Party as a model, Gustav Hitler’s evil and deadly activities
Jobbik is part of the Brigade of Death.



Communism in Hungary is no more, those days are gone and will
never come back. But the old Nazism and racism of Gustav Hitler’s
days is still more current than ever. The Arrow Cross ideas, now
embraced by the Jobbik Party, are starting to spread again in
Hungary. This party has many times referred to the ”Holy Crown
of Hungary” as their model. The leader of the Arrow Cross Party,
Szállasi, took the oath on the crown on November 4, 1944, thereby
sending Hungary, the Hungarians (including Jews and the Romani
people) to the center of death. Gustav Hitler’s Nazism resembled
Christianity and even the Vatican co-operated with the activities of
Death. Gustav was a reincarnation of, among others, Nero, Jesus the
Lamb and Saint Stephen. Jobbik maintains, among other things, that
they can take up arms to defend the Holy Crown in Hungary. Any
politician or party aiming their weapons at their own people are not
Hungarians but a beast, thirsty for blood.

When Stephen assumed power in Hungary he killed 75% of the Hungarian, pagan population supported by foreign Christians
who have multiplied in Hungary. Jobbik, the party which can use weapons against the Hungarians, has nothing to do with
Hungary or the Hungarians. They are more like reincarnations of the death patrols which Stephen used during a 40-year long
operation against the Hungarians.

If Hungary does not end their contacts with the Vatican
and religion, they can expect a crucifixion more terrible
than what happened on June 4, 1920, almost 100 years
ago. Hungary has always belonged to Árpád, also in the
past. Heathendom related to nature, man and knowledge.
During 2000 years Jews have been murdered in the open,
during 1000 years Hungarians have been killed in secrecy
and the whole of Europe has been showered in blood
because of religion. Gustav Hitler spread pills of death,
killing more than 50 million people.

Symbolic crucifixion of Hungary Symbolic crucifixion of Hungary

There are rumours that the Jobbik Party persecutes Jews and Romani people in Hungary. At the same time they refer to the Holy
Crown which goes back all the way to Jesus, who ‘according to’ the gospels was a Jew as were his apostles. Something is not
right. As a comparison, imagine that Jobbik’s top leader was elected Hungary’s top politician and raised to the skies, while all
other members of his party would be destroyed. Would that be normal?

Now, at top speed, we are on our way to the end. Hungary needs a stable, balanced and harmonious situation. There are two
alternatives: ‘life and knowledge’ or ‘death and religion’. There is no alternative three. Now, when Christianity is about to
disintegrate, a different religion is ready to conquer Europe. It is of vital importance for Hungary to return to heathen culture,
take out ‘Turul’ and leave the cross behind before it is too late. Remember! Hungary was the last country which by violence,
coercion and terror was transferred into Christianity. Now Hungary should be the first country to leave the center of death. Then
others will follow the Hungarians: Bulgaria, Germany, Croatia, Austria, the Czech Republic, etc. All this must take place before
the dark pope #113 appears and the natural catastrophes become active.
More info at The Ark and the Global Flood, pp 8-20 and Life and the Black Hole, pp 7-8.
What the whole world knows about the Jews is that they are still an élite people and Hungary has many capable Jews. The
Romani people of Hungary are not worse than the foreigners who killed the Hungarians in Stephen’s time. I heard in an
interview that one of their leaders said, among others things, that criminals exist all over the world, not only among Romani
people. He added that he and his close friends are against the criminals and that you cannot lump everyone together. I share his
views. My paternal great grandfather Mihály was a professional mason and carpenter. Together with his father he had a small
company making bricks for construction. When he was old, he started a band with four or five musicians. He himself played a
number of instruments, composed folk music and wrote lyrics. In the group were one or two Romani, they also had a musical
education. My paternal grandmother told me that my great grandfather and his band played in restaurants in the evenings, also
with their own songs. The combination of Hungarian folk music and Romani music strongly improved the band. Also my
paternal grandfather had a musical ear, he played the piano and the violin. In his professional life also he knew capable Romani,
for example artisans. One of his best friends was Serb called Sukics. He had a surveyor business in Baja and my grandfather did
some work for him. Sukics was a successful businessman, he had a comprehensive network in Hungary and Serbia, music was
his greatest interest. He had many Romani in his network, such as artisans. The Romani were also capable businessmen, they
had a feeling for business and contacts. If the Romani could be integrated in the community in the 30’s, 40’s, 50’s and 60’s, they
can do it again. The Hungarian ”Lakatos”, the Gypsy orchestra, was world famous and there were many similar orchestras with
women as well as men. As far as I can understand, the Romani is an asset in Hungary, an asset Hungary needs. When Attila was
king of the Hunnic Empire, a journalist asked him a question since he knew that the Hunnic Empire had many tribes: ”Who is a
true Hun?”  Attila answered: ”A real Hun is a person who can integrate into the Hunnic society”. If we treat the Romani in a
human way, they can also integrate into the Hungarian community. The same goes for all of Europe.



We still live in the same world. Time is changing, maturing, and we need to find coherence rather than continue with lies which
in the end are useless for everybody. Everything I write about religion is known all over the world, but without cohesion. The
Christian religion can be likened to a labyrinth, neither in nor out. When you exist in such a labyrinth you lose contact without
reality and what remains for you is to believe you will find the exit some time. The gospels call these people a ‘flock of sheep’
who ended up in the Christian labyrinth, One thing you need to remember is that as long as you belong to blood group 0 you are
a human, regardless of race, religion, nationality, knowledge, opinions on life and criminality. Among these people individual
differences are large depending on home environment and upbringing. These groups are the worst carnivors. People on Earth are
at different levels of knowledge and they all start with their own knowledge and explain this and that in different ways,
sometimes causing trouble and misunderstandings, but many times they talk about the same thing without understanding the
issue or each other.

Carmelites of the Holy Face Order



Michelangelo, Daniel, The Sistine Chapel,
                          Rome, 1511

The End of TimeDan. 12:4 and 12:13

”/…/ But you, Daniel, shut up the
words, and seal the book until the
time of the end; many shall run to
and fro, and knowledge shall in-
crease.”

”But you, go your way till the end; for
you shall rest, and will arise to your
inheritance at the end of the
days./…/”

Tibor E. and I, Szabolcs/ Josef
Photo: Tibor Kemény, 1964

Stockholm

Tibor E. and I, Szabolcs/ Josef
Photo: Tibor Kemény, 1964

Stockholm

Finally:
5 Jesus said, "Know what is in front of
your face, and what is hidden from you
will be disclosed to you.” – Even Jesus
wanted everything secret to be
revealed, to let the world have
knowledge.
10 Jesus said: ” I have cast fire upon
the world, and look, I'm guarding it
until it blazes."  16 Jesus said:
”Perhaps people think that I have come
to cast peace upon the world. They do
not know that I have come to cast
conflicts upon the earth: fire, sword,
war.


